To be an indispensable partner in the journey of everyone
whose life we touch.

PHOENIX

Fuels Life

15 July 2017

Mr. Jose Valeriano B. Zuiio III
OIC - Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange
Makati City, Metro Manila

Dear Mr. Zuno:

In furtherance to our Disclosure dated 24 May 2017 pertaining to the execution of a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with PDB (Netherlands) B.V., a wholly
owned subsidiary of PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad (PDB) in relation to the planned
100% share acquisition of PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC. (PEPI), and Duta,
Inc. (DUTA)

Today, the Company’s Board of Directors has approved and authorized the
execution of two agreements for the acquisition of PEPI and DUTA subject to PCC

approval.

Please find attached comprehensive corporate disclosure on the transaction
including the audited financial statements of PEPI and DUTA.

Thank you and warm regards.

Socorro Ermac Cabreros
orporate Secretary



Acquisition by P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (“Phoenix”) of 100% shares
owned by PDB (Netherlands) B. V. (“PDBN”)in PETRONAS Energy Philippines, Inc. (PEPI)
and 100% interest in Duta, Inc. (“DUTA”)

1. The Transaction:

The Board of Directors of Phoenix (Purchaser) wishes to announce that on July 5, 2017
it has approved and authorized the execution of two agreements for the purchase of (i)
100% shares owned by PDBN (Seller) in PEPI and (ii) 100% shares in DUTA (Sale
Shares) for a total purchase price of USD 126.1 million, subject to price adjustment.
(paragraph 10.a on other salient terms)

DUTA is 40% owned by the Seller and the balance of 60% is owned by other
shareholders, namely:

a) Alsons Consolidated Resources, Inc. with principal address located at Alsons
Building, 2286 Chino Roces Ave., Makati City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

b) Masaligan, Inc. with principal address located at the 224 Floor, Citibank Center,
Citibank Plaza, 8741 Paseo de Roxas Ave., Makati City, Metro Manila

The total purchase price of USD126.1 million pertains to the following:

i. USD 120,050,000.00 representing 100% equity interest in PEPI
ii.  USD 6,079,000.00 representing 100% equity interest in DUTA

2. The Parties:

a. The Seller, PDBN, is a company organized under the laws of Netherlands with
principal address located at Rivium 1e straat 42 Capelleaan den 1Jsse, 2909LE, The
Netherlands. It is the investment holding company of PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad
(“PDB”). PDB is controlled by Petroliam Nasional Berhad (“PETRONAS”), which
owns 69.88% of PDB’s outstanding shares.

PDB is a company organized under the laws of Malaysia and listed on the main
board of the stock exchange of Malaysia. It is the principal marketing arm of
PETRONAS. PDB is a retailer and marketer of downstream oil and gas products. It
has four core businesses: retail, commercial, LPG, and lubricants.

PETRONAS was created pursuant to the Malaysian Petroleum Development Act
1974 (“PDA 1974”) and was incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 (“CA
1965”) as a business entity, wholly owned by the Malaysian Government.
PETRONAS is a fully integrated multinational oil and gas company.



b. The Purchaser, Phoenix, is a Philippine corporation incorporated on May 8, 2002
with principal address located along Stella Hizon Reyes Rd., Bo. Pampanga, Lanang,
Davao City. Itis engaged primarily in the trading of refined petroleum products,
except LPG, on wholesale basis and the operation of oil depots in various parts of
the country. Phoenix is listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)

3. The Sale Shares
The shares subject of sale to Phoenix are as follows:

a. 1,092,500,000 common shares of PHP1.00 par value each and 1,511,325
redeemable preferred shares of PHP1.00 par value each in PEPI (collectively
referred to as “PEPI Shares”), representing 100% equity interest in PEPI for a cash
consideration of USD120.1 million; and

b. 457,500 common shares of PHP100.00 par value each in DUTA (“Duta Shares”),
representing 100% equity interest in DUTA (including a shareholder advance by
PDB to DUTA) for a cash consideration of USD6.1 million;

4. Information on the Acquired Corporations

Petronas Energy Philippines, Inc. (PEPI)

PEPI is a private stock corporation incorporated on 20 June 1995 and registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Philippines (“SEC”).

As at the date of this Announcement, PEPI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PDB via
PDBN, which is also a wholly-owned subsidiary of PDB.

PEPI's authorized capital stock is PHP1,100,000,000 comprising 1,100,000,000
common shares with par value of PHP1.00 per share, of which 1,092,500,000 common
shares have been issued while PEPI's authorized redeemable preferred share capital is
PHP2,000,000 comprising 2,000,000 redeemable preferred shares of PHP1.00 each, of
which 1,511,325 redeemable preferred shares have been issued and fully paid-up.

PEPI is primarily engaged in the buying, selling, storing, distributing, and marketing at
wholesale of all kinds of goods, including but not limited to liquefied petroleum gas and
other petroleum products.

As at the date of this Announcement, PEPI does not have any subsidiary or associated
company.

The shareholders and/or directors of PEPI together with their respective shareholdings
as of 30 June 2017 are as follows:



Class of shares

No. of No. of

ordinary preferred
Name shares shares % of ownership
PDBN 1,092,499,996 1,511,325 100.0
Lu Jia Lih® 1 - *
Norliwati Abdul Wahab® 1 - *
Mohd Shobri Bin A Bakar 1 - *
Mohd Ibrahimnuddin Bin Mohd Yunus 1 - *
Total 1,092,500,000 1,511,325 100.0

Notes:
(1) The Directors of PEPI who hold one (1) ordinary share each in trust for PDBN.

* Negligible.

Based on the latest audited financial statements of PEPI for the financial year ended
(“FYE”) 31 December 2016, PEPI registered a net income of PHP153.4 million and
net assets (“NA”) of PHP2,532.2 million.

Duta, Inc. (DUTA)

DUTA is a private stock corporation incorporated on 9 November 1994 and
registered with the SEC.

As at the date of this Announcement, the ownership of DUTA is 40%owned by PDBN,
30% owned by Alsons and 30% owned by Masaligan. DUTA is an indirect associated
company of PDB.

DUTA'’s authorized capital stock is PHP51,000,000 comprising of 510,000 common
shares with par value of PHP100.00 per share, of which 457,500 common shares have
been issued and fully paid-up.

DUTA is primarily engaged in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling
securities of every kind and description and leasing land.

As at the date of this Announcement, DUTA has a wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Kaparangan, Inc (“Kaparangan”). Kaparangan was incorporated and registered with
the SEC on 21 January 1994 and is primarily engaged in the business of buying,
investing, exchanging, selling securities of every kind and description and leasing
land.

The shareholders and/or directors of DUTA together with their respective
shareholdings as at 30 June 2017are as follows:



No. of ordinary % of

Name shares  ownership
PDBN 182,996 40.0%
Tomas I. Alcantara 54,850 12.0%
Tirso G. Santillan, Jr. 82,400 18.0%
Tarcisio M. Medalla 82,400 18.0%
Roy R. Romano 54,850 12.0%
Lu Jia Lih 1 *
Norliwati Abdul Wahab 1 *
Mohd Shobri Bin A Bakar 1 *
Mohd Ibrahimnuddin Bin Mohd Yunus 1 *
Total 457,500 100.0
*Negligible.

Based on the latest audited consolidated financial statements of DUTA for the FYE 31
December 2016, DUTA registered a net loss of PHP9.5 million and NA of PHP34.7

million.

. Discussion on Major Project and Investments of Acquired Companies:

As of 2016 until to date, there are no major projects or investments undertaken by PEP,
DUTA or Kaparangan.

. Source of Funds:

Funding for the subject purchase shall be primarily sourced from banking loans or lines
duly approved for the purpose.

. Net Asset Valuation of the Acquired Corporations:

The combined net assets of PEPI and DUTA is PHP 2,567.0 million as of 31 December
2016

. Manner, Mode and Terms of Settlement

The total Purchase Price of USD126.1 million (equivalent to Php6,268.6 million*)will be
satisfied entirely via cash in the manner as set out below:

Payment to be received
Payment terms Timing USD million PHP million*

(i) Mode of settlement pursuant to acquisition of PEPI by Phoenix

Deposit sum Within 3 business days after the 24.0 1,193.3



execution of the SPAs

Balance Payment in full upon completion of 96.1 4,773.2
the Divestment

Subtotal 120.1 5,966.5

(ii) Mode of settlement pursuant to divestment of PDBN and other shareholders in

Duta

Total Payment in full upon completion of 6.1 302.1

consideration the Divestment

Subtotal 6.1 302.1

Total 126.10 6,268.6

*Assumes USD$1.00 = Php 49.70

9. Principle followed in determining the amount of consideration. (Basis of
consideration)

The basis for determining the consideration of USD126.10 million was arrived at on a
willing-buyer-willing-seller basis, after taking into consideration the following:

i.  The audited financial performance of PEPI and DUTA for the FYE 31 December
2016; and

ii. ~ The combined new assets of Php2,567.0 million of PEPI and DUTA for FYE 31
December 2016 of which the total purchase price or consideration represents a
price-to-book ratio (“PB ratio”) of approximately 2.44 times.

10.0ther salient conditions
a. Purchase Price Adjustment

The purchase price will be adjusted based on the working capital position, cash and
non-trade receivables position, and debt and non-trade payables position of DUTA
as at the completion date of the accounts of DUTA which shall be the same date as
the DUTA Completion Date (as defined in paragraph b below).

b. Completion

The completion of PEPI SPA shall take place, on the last calendar day of the same
month during which the Conditions Precedent as provided in Paragraphs c below
are satisfied or waived, unless the date when all of the said conditions precedent are
satisfied or waived is less than 3 business days prior to the last day of the same
month, then the PEPI Transaction Completion shall be deemed to occur on the last
calendar day of the subsequent month, or at another time, date and/or place as the
Purchaser and PDBN may agree in writing.



c. Conditions precedent

The obligation of the Sellers and the Purchaser to consummate the transactions
contemplated by the Duta SPA is subject to the satisfaction, or waiver, on or
before the Long Stop Date (as defined in paragraph d below), of the completion
of the sale and purchase of all of the PEPI Shares in PEPI to the Purchaser
occurring at the same time as the completion of the sale and purchase of the
Duta Shares to the Purchaser.

d. Long Stop Date

a. The Long Stop Date means the date 2 years from the date of the signing of the
PEPI SPA or such later date the parties may mutually agree in writing, for the
parties to satisfy the Conditions Precedent.

b. In the event that any of the Conditions Precedent of the Purchaser and PDBN
has not been fulfilled on or before Long Stop Date, the PEPI SPA shall
terminate unless the parties agree on or prior to the Long Stop Date to
extend the Long Stop Date to a later date.

11. Effects on the business, financial condition and operation of the Issuer (Phoenix)
For PEPI

a. Capital Structure of PEPI

Common shares Before After
Authorized Capital Stock 1,100,000,000 shares 1,100,000,000 shares
Issued and Subscribed Capital 1,092,500,000 shares 1,092,500,000 shares
Stock
Par Value Per Share Php1.00 Php1.00

Redeemable Preferred shares Before After
Authorized Capital Stock 2,000,000 shares 2,000,000 shares
Issued and Subscribed Capital 1,511,325 shares 1,511,325 shares
Stock
Par Value Per Share Php1.00 Php1.00




b. Ownership Structure of PEPI BEFORE the transaction

Class of shares
Before the Transaction

No. of No. of
ordinary preferred % of
Name shares shares ownership
PDBN 1,092,499,996 1,511,325 100.0
Lu Jia Lih 1 - *
Norliwati Abdul Wahab 1 - *
Mohd Shobri Bin A Bakar 1 - *
Mohd Ibrahimnuddin Bin Mohd Yunus 1 - *
Total 1,092,500,000 1,511,325 100.0
c. Ownership Structure of PEPI AFTER the transaction:
Class of shares
AFTER the transaction
No. of No. of
ordinary preferred % of
Name shares shares ownership
P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, 1,092,499,996 1,511,325 100.0
Inc.
Dennis A. Uy 1 - *
Henry Albert R. Fadullon 1 - *
Joseph John L. Ong 1 - *
Romeo B. de Guzman 1 - *
Total 1,092,500,000 1,511,325 100.0
d. Current members of the Board of Directors of PEPI:
i.  Mohd Ibrahimnuddin Bin Mohd Yunus Chairman
ii.  LuJia Lih President & CEO
iii.  Norliwati Binti Abdul Wahab
iv.  Mohd Shobri Bin A Bakar
v.  Nicanor N. Padilla Corporate Secretary
vi.  Evelyn C. Taneo Treasurer/CFO
For DUTA
e. Capital Structure of DUTA
Common shares Before After
Authorized Capital Stock 510,000 shares 510,000 shares
Issued and Subscribed Capital 457,500 shares 457,500 shares
Stock
Par Value Per Share Php1.00 Php1.00




f. Ownership Structure of DUTA BEFORE the transaction

No. of common % of
Name shares ownership
PDBN 182,996 40.0%
Tomas I. Alcantara 54,850 12.0%
Tirso G. Santillan, Jr. 82,400 18.0%
Tarcisio M. Medalla 82,400 18.0%
Roy R. Romano 54,850 12.0%
Lu Jia Lih 1 *
Norliwati Abdul Wahab 1 *
Mohd Shobri Bin A Bakar 1 *
Mohd Ibrahimnuddin Bin Mohd Yunus 1 *
Total 457,500 100.0

g. Ownership Structure of DUTA AFTER the transaction

No. of ordinary % of
Name shares ownership
P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. 457,493 99.99%
Dennis A. Uy 1 *
Henry Albert R. Fadullon 1 *
Romeo B. de Guzman 1 *
Socorro Ermac Cabreros 1 *
Joseph John L. Ong 1 *
Alan Raymond T. Zorrilla 1 *
Domingo T. Uy 1 *
Total 457,500 100.0

*Negligible

12. Rationale of the acquisition of PEPI

The Company views the LPG business as a strong strategic fit as it broadens its product
portfolio and petroleum presence across the country, with cross selling opportunities in
fuel and LPG to consumers and corporates



PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC.
[A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.]

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2016 and 2015



R.G. Manabat & Co.

The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000

Fax +63 (2) 894 1985
Internet www.kpmg.com.ph
Email ph-inquiry@kpmg.com.ph

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Petronas Energy Philippines, Inc.

LPG Import Terminal and Bottling Plant
Matab-ang, Dalipuga, lligan City

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Petronas Energy
Philippines, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.) (the
“Company”), which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31,
2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PRC-BOA Accreditation No, 0003, with extended validity untit April 30, 2017

pursuant to Board Resolution No. 37 s, of 2017

N SEC Accreditalion No. 0004-FR-4, Group A, valid until November 10, 2017
R.G. Manabat & Co., a Philippine partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent IC Accreditation No, F-2014/014-R, valid untll August 26, 2017
member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational Coopsrative ("KPMG Internationai”), a Swiss entity. BSP Accredited, Category A, valid untif December 17, 2017
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Responsibilities of Management and Those in Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors (BOD) is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. ‘Reasonable assurance’
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



kb

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the BOD and management, regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 22 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

5 WAV VOl [N

JOHN MOLINA
Partner
CPA License No. 0092632
SEC Accreditation No. 1101-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2017
Tax |dentification No. 109-916-107
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-23-2016
Issued October 18, 2016; valid until October 17, 2019
PTR No. 5904936MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

February 24, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Petronas Energy Philippines, Inc.

LPG Import Terminal and Bottling Plant
Matab-ang, Dalipuga, lligan City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Petronas Energy
Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.,
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, on which we have rendered our report
dated February 24, 2017.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, we are stating
that the said Company has only one (1) stockholder owning one hundred (100) or more
shares.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

s M

JOHN MOLINA
Partner
CPA License No. 0092632
SEC Accreditation No. 1101-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2017
Tax Identification No. 109-916-107
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-23-2016
Issued October 18, 2016; valid until October 17, 2019
PTR No. 5904936MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

February 24, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila

PRC-BOA Accr ion No. 0003, with ded valldity until Aprit 30, 2017
pursuant to Board Resolution No, 37 5. of 2017
SEC Accreditation No, 0004-FR-4, Group A, valid until November 10, 2017
R.G. Manabat & Co., a Philippine partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent |C Accreditation No. F-2014/014-R, valid until August 26, 2017
member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational Cooperative ("KPMG International™), a Swiss entity. BSP Accredited, Calegory A, valid until December 17, 2017




R.G. Manabat & Co.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Petronas Energy Philippines, Inc.

LPG Import Terminal and Bottling Plant
Matab-ang, Dalipuga, lligan City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Petronas Energy

“Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V,
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, on which we have rendered our report
dated February 24, 2017.

In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm
is related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholders
of the Company.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

o M-Vl

JOHN MOLINA
Partner
CPA License No. 0092632
SEC Accreditation No. 1101-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2017
Tax Identification No. 109-916-107
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-23-2016
Issued October 18, 2016; valid until October 17, 2019
PTR No. 5904936MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

February 24, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila

PRC-BOA Accreditation No. 0003, with extended validity untit April 30, 2017
pursuant to Board Resolution No. 37 s, of 2017
SEC Accreditation No. 0004-FR-4, Group A, valid until November 10, 2017
R.G. Manabat & Co,, a Philippine partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent  [C Accredttalion No, F-2014/014-R, valid until August 28, 2017
member firms affiliated with KPMG Intemational Cooperalive ("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. BSP Accrediled, Category A, valid uniil December 17, 2017



PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC.

[A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.]

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note 2016 2015

ASSETS
Current Assefs
Cash and cash equivalents 4,20 P135,951,289 P147,304,112
Receivables - net 5,19, 20 363,031,574 822,422,964
Due from related parties 14, 20 77,556,553 105,711,972
Inventories 6 97,315,170 182,050,064
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7, 20 52,189,714 149,311,855

Total Current Assets 726,044,300 1,406,800,967
Noncurrent Assets
Noncurrent portion of receivables 5 19, 20 5,317,754 107,381,322
Property, plant and equipment - net 8 2,440,352,867 2,719,020,201
Deferred tax assets - net 18 63,927,253 71,665,641
Other noncurrent assets 9 67,018,020 60,244,306

Total Noncurrent Assets

2,576,615,894

2,958,311,470

P3,302,660,194

P4,365,112,437

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10, 14, 20 P231,830,552 P497,109,515
Due to related parties 14, 20 6,144,608 16,437,125
Current loans payable 12, 20 180,000,000 890,000,000
Total Current Liabilities 417,975,160 1,403,546,640
Noncurrent Liabilities
Customers’ deposits 11, 20 138,876,078 254,079,370
Retirement benefits liability 16 21,069,591 15,805,431
Long-term loans payable - net of current
portion 12, 20 192,500,000 302,500,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 352,445,669 572,384,801
Total Liabilities 770,420,829 1,975,931,441
Equity
Capital stock 13 802,426,828 802,426,828
Additional paid-in capital 13 1,509,813,675 1,509,813,675
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plan 16 953,718 11,252,660
Retained earnings 219,045,144 65,687,833

Total Equity

2,632,239,365

2,389,180,996

P3,302,660,194

P4,365,112,437

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC.
[A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.]

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015
SALES P2,830,265,202 P3,343,135,047
COST OF SALES 15 2,164,761,007 2 852,462,083
GROSS PROFIT 665,504,195 490,672,964
OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation and amortization 8 160,980,512 163,581,008
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 97,224,051 92,499,955
Repairs and maintenance 66,667,363 44,241 557
Impairment losses on trade receivables 5 64,077,377 2,050,000
Contracted services 21,985,075 19,675,620
Rent 17 14,572,860 29,908,670
Taxes and licenses 13,299,330 15,685,701
Transportation and travel 10,608,932 11,103,761
Communication, light and water 9,521,382 9,488,096
Retirement benefits cost 16 6,356,817 7,562,909
Advertising and promotions 5,099,461 7,044,434
Supplies 5,021,000 4,346,432
Insurance 4,915,035 6,376,904
Dues and subscriptions 3,276,731 2,985,997
Professional fees 3,060,831 11,922,310
Fuel and oil 1,452,160 1,565,901
Trainings and seminars 761,414 824,586
Miscellaneous 816,460 1,477,657
489,696,791 432,341,498
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 175,807,404 58,331,466
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest expense and bank charges 12 (24,438,429) (34,122,689)
Interest income 4,5 14 5,955,687 13,111,861
Foreign exchange loss - net (3,914,171) (16,852,230)
Others 7,8 11 24,006,178 (4,337,109)
1,609,165 (42,200,167)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 177,416,569 16,131,299
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 18 (24,059,258) (36,148,308)
NET INCOME (LOSS) 153,357,311 (20,017,009)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plan 16 (14,712,774) 8,458,062
Income tax relating to an item that will not be
reclassified subsequently 4,413,832 (2,537,419)
(10,298,942) 5,920,643
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) P143,058,369 (P14,096,366)

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC.
[A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.]

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P177,416,569 P16,131,299
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 8, 15 241,234,064 235,078,974
Impairment losses on:
Trade receivables 5 64,077,377 2,050,000
Inventories 6 32,125,477 46,806,654
Interest expense and bank charges 12 24,438,429 34,122,689
Loss on assets written-off/disposed 8, 11 12,429,474 9,371,013
Retirement benefits cost 16 6,356,817 7,562,909
Interest income 4,5 (5,955,587) (13,111,861)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) 265,993 (1,236,411)
Operating income before working capital
changes 552,388,613 336,775,266 -
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables - net 5 396,263,869 389,711,912
Inventories 6 60,861,142 48,324,263
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7 85,215,102 (14,953,445)
Due from related parties 14 28,155,419 (7,192,418)
Long-term receivables 5 19 102,063,568 (109,495,503)
Other noncurrent assets 9 (6,773,712) 37,081,364
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 10 (304,435,102) (938,272,938)
Due to related parties 14 (10,292,517) 16,282,042
Customers’ deposits 11 16,741,434 42,566,908
Cash generated from (used for) operations 920,187,816 (199,172,549)
Interest received 5,005,731 5,239,194
Contribution to the plan assets 16 (15,805,431) (25,000,000)
Interest paid (28,330,323) (31,897,287)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 881,057,793 (250,830,642)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from assets disposal 8 11,377,988 11,776,039
Additions to property, plant and equipment 8 (83,788,604) (129,976,881)

Net cash used in investing activities

(72,410,616)

(118,200,842)

Forward



Years Ended December 31

Nofte 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Payments of bank loans 12 (P820,000,000) (P190,000,000)
Proceeds from availment of bank loans 12 - 460,000,000
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities (820,000,000) 270,000,000
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (11,352,823) (99,031,484)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 147,304,112 246,335,596
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 4 P135,951,289 P147,304,112

See Notes to the Financial Statements.



PETRONAS ENERGY PHILIPPINES, INC.
[A Wholly-owned Subsidiary of PDB (Netherlands) B.V.]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Petronas Energy Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 20, 1995.
The Company’s primary purpose is to engage in the buying, selling, storing,
distributing, and marketing at wholesale of all kinds of goods, including but not
limited to liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and other petroleum products. The address
of the Company’s registered office is at LPG Import Terminal and Bottling Plant,
Matab-ang, Dalipuga, lligan City.

The Company's ultimate parent is Petroliam Nasional Berhad (PETRONAS), an
entity incorporated under the Laws of Malaysia.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. PFRS
which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC),
consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and Philippine
Interpretations.

The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on February 24, 2017.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis of
accounting, except for retirement benefits liability which are measured at present
value of the defined benefits obligation less fair value of the plan assets.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Philippine peso
has been rounded off to the nearest peso, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounted of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.




The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period when the estimates
is revised and if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future period when revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has

made the following judgments, and apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements.

Determining Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company, the functional currency has been determined to be the Philippine peso. It
is the currency that mainly influences the sales price of goods and the cost of
providing these goods. _

Classifying Financial Instruments

The Company exercises judgments in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability, or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement
and the definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of a financial
instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of
financial position.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale (AFS) financial assets. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified
as either financial liabilites at FVPL or other financial liabilities. The Company
determines the classification at initial recognition and re-evaluates the classification
at every reporting date.

Determining the Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the
statements of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
mathematical models. The Company uses judgments to select from a variety of
valuation models and make assumptions regarding considerations of liquidity and
model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated financial instruments.
The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value.
Fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 20 to the
financial statement.

Determining Lease Agreements

Operating Lease - The Company as a L essee

The Company has entered into various lease arrangements for its office premises,
lubricant warehouses and the land where its plants are located. The Company has
determined that all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these spaces remain
with the lessors due to the following:

a. the ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease term;

b. the Company has no option to purchase the asset at a price which is expected to
be sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes
exercisable such that, at the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that
the option will be exercised; and



c. the lease term is not for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if
title is not transferred.

Rent expense amounted to P14.57 million and P29.91 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively (Note 17).

Assessment of Impairment Indicators on Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses whether or not there are impairment indicators affecting its
property, plant and equipment and other nonfinancial assets that the Company
considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected
future operating results;

= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy
for overall business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends.

Management assessed that there were no indicators affecting the Company’s
property, plant and equipment and other nonfinancial assets (Notes 8 and 9).

Estimates

The key estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based on
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances of the date of the
Company’s financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company reviews the collectibility of its receivables maintaining an allowance for
impairment losses at a level considered adequate to provide for uncollectible
receivables. The Company performs regular review of the age and status of these
accounts designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment and
provides these with appropriate allowance for impairment losses. The review is
accomplished using a combination of specific and collective assessment
approaches, with the impairment losses being determined for each risk grouping
identified by the Company. The amount and timing of unrecorded expenses for any
period would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would increase
recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

The Company’s allowance for impairment losses and the carrying values of
receivables are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Allowance to Reduce Inventories to Net Realizable Value (NRV)

The Company carries inventories at NRV whenever the utility of inventories become
lower than cost due to physical deterioration, changes in price levels or other causes.
The estimate of the NRV is reviewed regularly. The Company wrote down inventory
to its NRV amounting to P32.13 million and P46.81 million as at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively (Note 6). Carrying values of inventories are disclosed in
Note 6 to the financial statements.



Allowance for Unrecoverable Taxes and Duties

The Company assesses the need to maintain an allowance for unrecoverable claims
for taxes and duties at a level considered adequate to provide for the potential
uncollectible portion of these claims in the form of tax credit certificates (TCCs) from
the Philippine Bureau of Customs (BOC). Management, on the basis of factors that
affect the collectibility of the claims, evaluates the level of this allowance. A review of
the status of the claims, designed to identify claims to be provided with allowance, is
made by the Company on a continuing basis. When such claims are collected from
the BOC through the issuance of TCC, the net amount received is recorded as tax
credits and the unrecovered portion is recorded as reduction of the related
allowance.

The receivable from BOC is fully provided with allowance for impairment loss
amounting to P7.90 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (Note 7). Carrying
values of receivable from BOC are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Estimated Useful Lives (EUL) of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on
the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The EUL are
reviewed periodically and are revised if expectations differ from previous estimates
due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, and legal or
other limits on the use of the Company’s assets. It is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought
about by changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of
recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and
circumstances. A reduction in the EUL of property, plant and equipment would
increase recorded expenses and decrease noncurrent assets. There are no changes
in the EUL of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of the Company’s property, plant and equipment amounted to
P2.44 billion and P2.72 billion as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively

(Note 8).

Estimating Retirement Benefits

The determination of the Company’s retirement benefits liability and retirement
benefits cost is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries
in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 16 to the
financial statements and include, among others, discount rates, interest rates and
average annual salary increase rate. While management believes that the
assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual
experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect retirement
benefit cost and liability.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each reporting
period. It is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the
interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid. The terms to maturity of these bonds should approximate the
terms of the related retirement obligations.

Other key assumptions for the retirement benefits liability are based in part on
market conditions.



Retirement benefits cost amounted to P6.36 million and P7.56 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively. The Company's retirement benefits liability amounted to P21.07
million and P15.81 milion as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively
(Note 16).

Estimating Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces the
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The Company also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of
temporary differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly. The
Company’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is
based on the Company’'s past results and future expectations on revenues and
expenses. While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the
assessment of the realizability of deferred tax assets and may lead to future addition
to deferred tax expense.

The Company recognized deferred tax assets amounting to P63.93 million and
P71.67 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 18). No
deferred tax assets were recognized on NOLCO amounting to P216.81 million and
MCIT amounting to P21.41 million as at December 31, 2016.

Realizability of Input Value Added Tax (VAT)

The Company reviews the realizability of its input tax at each reporting date. The
Company reduces the input tax to an amount it expects to realize in the future based
on conditions existing as at the reporting date. Changes in such conditions could
have a material impact on the financial position and performance of the Company.

The Company assessed that all its input VAT are realizable as at December 31,
2016 (Notes 7 and 9). Carrying values of input VAT are disclose in Note 7 and 9 to
the financial statements.

Provisions '

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. Those estimates are based on consultations with independent
outside parties, historical experiences and other available data. While management
believes that the bases of these estimates are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or in assumption may materially affect the
recorded provision.

Contingencies

The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the
probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation
with outside counsel handling the Company’s defense in these matters and is based
on an analysis of potential results. The Company currently does not believe that
these proceedings will have a material adverse effect on its financial position. It is
possible; however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by
changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the strategies relating to these
proceedings.



3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the
Company, except for the changes in accounting policies as explained below.

Adoption _of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and
Interpretations

The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards starting

January 1, 2016 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as

otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new amendments to standard did not have

any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

» Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1). Addresses some concerns
expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to
ensure that entities are able to use judgment when applying PAS 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements. The amendments clarify that:

e Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing
immaterial information.

e Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

e The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on
subtotals in these statements.

e An entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or
not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.

Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2016. However, the Company has not applied the
following new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements. Unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2017

» Disclosure initiative (Amendments to PAS 7). The amendments address financial
statements users’ requests for improved disclosures about an entity’s net debt
relevant to understanding an entity’'s cash flows. The amendments require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes - e.g. by providing a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. When an entity first applies the
amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods.



Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to
PAS 12). The amendments clarify that:

e the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

o the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of the deductible temporary differences;

e the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of
some of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is
sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

e an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related to unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. On initial application, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings
and other components of equity. If an entity applies the relief, it shall disclose
that fact.

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9 (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39 and supersedes the previously
published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and
introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with
risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively with early adoption permitted.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements
resulting from the application of PFRS 9.



Effective January 1, 2019

e PFRS 16, Leases, supersedes PAS 17, Leases, and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases
with a term of 12 months or less) and low-value items, as well as the permission
of portfolio-level accounting instead of applying the requirements to individual
leases. New estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the identification,
classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to
reassess certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting date were
introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers at or before the date of initial application of PFRS 16.
The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans
to adopt this new standard on leases on the required effective date once adopted
locally.

=  PFRS 15. PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue,
IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31, Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue recognition model for
contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should be recognized
when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at
the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether
certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best
reflects the company’s performance, or at a point in time, when control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to
insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the
scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS,
then the guidance on separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS
takes precedence.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

Nonderivative Financial Instruments

Nonderivative financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, due from related parties, accounts payable and accrued expenses, due
to related parties, loans payable and customers’ deposits.

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
in the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recognition is done using settlement date accounting.



Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in
case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those
designated at FVPL, includes transaction cost.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: HTM
investments, AFS financial assets, financial assets at FVPL, and loans and
receivables. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other
financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets are acquired and financial liabilities are incurred and whether they are quoted
in an active market. Management determines the classification of its financial assets
and financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The Company has no HTM investments, AFS financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVPL as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not
designated as AFS financial assets or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and
receivables are carried at cost or amortized cost, less any allowance for impairment
losses. Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through amortization process.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables - net, due from related
parties, long-term receivables and security deposits are included in this category.

Cash in bank is stated at its face value. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of three (3) months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to nonderivative financial liabilities
that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL at the inception of the
liability. They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost, taking into account the impact
of applying the effective interest rate method of amortization (or accretion) for any
related premium, discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties,
customers’ deposits and loans payable are included in this category.

Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes,
when necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for which
assets could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and
a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.




The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

= level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

= |evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

= Level 3;: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the
end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

“Day 1 Profit”. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the
fair value of the other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
or based on a valuation techniqgue whose variables include only data from
observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction
price and fair value (a “Day 1" profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition
as some other type of asset. In cases where use is made of data which are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the
appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” profit amount.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not
generally the case with master netting agreements. Thus, the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and
that the loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset or that group of financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost such as loans
and receivables, the Company first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
accounts whether significant or not, it includes the assets in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses this for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans and receivables are
grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics as type of borrower, credit
and payment status and term. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the excess of loan’s
carrying amount over its net realizable value, based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows from the asset. The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the loan’s original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. Any
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of an impaired loan is reduced to its net realizable value
through the use of an allowance account. If in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed to profit or loss, to the extent that the resulting carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount had no impairment loss
been recognized.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

= the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and NRV. The cost of inventories is
based on the moving average cost method and includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition. NRV of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to sell.

Inventories are derecognized upon sale or when there are no expected future
benefits from its disposal and are recognized under “Cost of sales” account in profit
or loss.

Spare Parts and Supplies

Spare parts and supplies, which are used for the repair and maintenance of the
Company’s machineries, are carried at cost which is its purchase price. These are
subsequently charged to expense when used.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Initially, an item of property, plant and equipment is measured at its cost, which
consists of purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
the location and condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures (including
costs of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment) that can be
measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the assets, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent
expenditures are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are
incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the EUL of assets.
The EUL are as follows:

Number of Years

Buildings and plant facilities 30
Gas cylinder tanks 30
Transportation equipment 5
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5
Machinery and equipment 5

Construction in progress, which represents costs incurred for the construction of
buildings, is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed when the relevant asset is
completed and used in operations at which time it is reclassified to appropriate
property, plant and equipment account.

The assets’ existence, residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed annually to ensure that the computation, method and period of depreciation
are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property,
plant and equipment.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising
from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or loss.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized
if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset.
The capitalization of borrowing costs: (a) commences when the activities to prepare
the assets are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred,;
(b) is suspended during extended periods in which active development, improvement
and construction of the assets are interrupted; and (c) ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets are complete. These costs are
amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related
property, plant and equipment to which it is capitalized. Borrowing costs that are not
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU, while fair
value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or CGU in
an arm'’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of
disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets or CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount
of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss in which it arises.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital

Common Shares

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

Preferred Shares

Preferred shares are classified as equity if they are non-redeemable, or redeemable
only at the option of the Company, and any dividends thereon is discretionary.
Dividends thereon are recognized as distributions within equity upon approval by the
BOD of the Company.

Preferred shares are classified as a liability if they are redeemable on a specific date
or at the option of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary.
Dividends thereon are recognized as interest expense in the statements of
comprehensive income as accrued.
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Additional Paid-in Capital

Additional paid-in capital includes any premium received on the initial issuance of the
capital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from additional paid in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the accumulated net income or losses, net of any
dividend distributions and other capital adjustments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue
is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably, which is normally upon delivery.

Interest income on deposits with banks and receivables are recognized when it is
determined that such income will accrue to the Company. The amounts included in
profit or losses are presented net of final tax withheld, if any.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized upon sale of goods, utilization of services or at
the date they are incurred.

Expenses are also recognized when a decrease in future economic benefit related to
a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably has
arisen. Expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between costs
incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and
rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over
several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or immediately when an expenditure produces no future economic
benefits or when, and to the extent that future economic benefits do not qualify, or
cease to qualify, for recognition as an asset.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the
Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain
or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments
during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the
exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in
profit or loss.

-14 -



Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after the
inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfiliment is dependent on a
specific asset; or

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (b).

Operating L eases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits or ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Retirement Benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in current and prior period; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service cost and
the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on the Company’s credit related government bonds that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting
change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Taxes

Income tax in profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the current tax are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes
and the carry forward tax benefits of the net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and
the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income
tax (RCIT). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
applicable to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward benefits of unused NOLCO and MCIT can be used. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related benefit will be realized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date, and are recognized to the extent
that is has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recognized
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Value-added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:

= where the VAT incurred on purchase of assets or services are not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the VAT is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” or “Accounts
payable and accrued expenses” accounts in the statements of financial position.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals or corporate entities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e. more likely than not)
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; (c) and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in
the financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's
financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are recognized in the
financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Cash on hand P120,023 P162,802
Cash in banks 11 135,831,266 135,259,290
Time deposits - 11,882,020

20 P135,9561,289 P147,304,112

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on prevailing bank deposit rates. Time
deposits mature in less than three (3) months and earn interest ranging from 0.25%
to 1.125% per annum and 0.25% to 0.65% per annum for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Total interest earned on cash in banks
and time deposits amounted to P0.39 million and P0.52 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

5. Receivables - Net

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Trade receivables 19 P506,780,819 P1,002,792,884
Less allowance for impairment losses 138,814,967 74,737,590
Trade receivables - net 367,965,852 928,055,294
Advances to employees 74,589 626,523
Others 308,887 1,122,469
Total receivables 368,349,328 929,804,286
Less noncurrent portion 19, 20 5,317,754 107,381,322
Current portion of receivables 19, 20 P363,031,574 P822,422,964

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 30 to 60-day credit
terms for the LPG products while almost all on cash on delivery basis for lubricants.

The Company entered into deferred payment agreement with certain customers who
are unable to pay their due and outstanding payables to the Company. The
Company agreed to collect the amount due, inclusive of interest, through
installments as stated in the terms and conditions of the agreement. Details of the
balances are disclosed in Note 19. Interest income from these agreements
amounted to P4.05 million and P4.90 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables are as

follows:
2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year P74,737,590 P73,864,314
Impairment losses for the year 64,077,377 2,050,000
Bad debts written off during the year - (1,176,724)
Balance at end of year P138,814,967 P74,737,590

-18 -




6.

Inventories

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
LPG - at cost P77,656,877 P89,991,266
Regulators and stoves - at cost 19,658,293 52,984,673
Lubricants - at NRV - 39,074,125

15  P97,315,170 P182,050,064

The Company wrote down lubricants with a total cost of P30.71 million and P123.8
million to NRV as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Inventories charged
to cost of sales amounted to P2.03 billion and P2.72 billion in 2016 and 2015,
respectively (Note 15).

The movements in the allowance to reduce inventories to NRV are as follows:

2016 2015

Balance at beginning of year P84,730,693 P62,362,049
Write down of inventories to its NRV 32,125,477 46,806,654
Sales at NRV during the year (86,148,314) (24,438,010)
Balance at end of year P30,707,856 P84,730,693

7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015

Input VAT - net P21,840,366 P93,327,032
Prepaid taxes 23,466,784 26,109,763
Prepaid insurance 3,170,468 2,712,302
Spare parts and supplies 1,147,296 24,478,155
Security deposits 20 2,564,800 2,684,603

Receivable from Bureau of Customs
(BOC) - net of allowance for
impairment losses amounting to
P7,901,012 in 2016 and 2015 - -
P52,189,714 P149,311,855

Input VAT - net consists of current and deferred input VAT from purchases of goods
and services (net of output VAT) as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Prepaid taxes consist of:

2016 2015

Excess creditable withholding taxes P16,566,369 P16,719,154
Prepaid real property tax and other

taxes and licenses 6,900,415 9,390,609

P23,466,784  P26,109,763

Receivable from BOC represents the Company’s various claims for refund of custom
duties paid on the importation of LPG. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
Company provides allowance for impairment losses amounting to P7.90 million.
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In 2016 and 2015, the Company has made significant disposals and write-offs of
property, plant and equipment due to termination of dealership agreement, change in
business direction, obsolescence, losses and wear and tear. Details of the significant
write-offs and disposals are as follows:

a. In 2016, the Company’'s major dealer in Luzon has fully settled its long overdue
obligations with the Company using the proceeds from sale of its LPG facilities to
a third party. Subsequently, its dealership agreement with the Company is
terminated. As a result, the Company wrote off the related unrecoverable gas
cylinders with cost and net book value of P197.89 million and P135.02 million,
respectively. The related customer deposits was also charged to profit or loss
(Note 11).

b. In December 2016, the BOD of the Company approved its exit from the Lubricant
business due to change in business direction rendering property, plant and
equipment with cost of P31.23 million and net book value of nil obsolete and
have no further use.

c. In 2016, the Company wrote off fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
pertaining to assets that were determined to be obsolete or no longer existing.
These included LPG conversion kits, computer equipment, LPG facilities,
cylinders and 50kg LPG manifold with cost amounting to P195.80 million,
P14.24 million, P35.97 million, P50.18 million and P42.61 million, respectively.

d. In 2016 and 2015, the Company made several disposals of property, plant and
equipment with total net book value amounting to P2.90 million and P21.15
million, respectively. Proceeds from the disposals amounted to P11.38 million
and P11.78 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, resulting in a loss from
disposals amounting to P9.35 million in 2016 and P9.37 million in 2015.

Depreciation are recognized in profit or loss as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Operating expenses P160,980,5612 P163,581,008
Cost of sales 15 80,253,552 71,497,966

P241,234,064 P235,078,974

9. Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets represent the noncurrent portion of input VAT on capital
expenditures amounting to P67.02 million and P60.24 million as at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively. The portion available for use in the next 12 months is
included in “Input VAT - net’ under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets”
account in the statements of financial position (Note 7).

In 2014, the Company provides allowance for non-recoverability of input VAT

amounting to P8.91 million and subsequently reversed the allowance in 2015. As at
December 31, 2016, the Company assessed that all of its input VAT are realizable.
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10. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015

Trade payables:
Related parties 14 P5,228,376 P215,385,007
Third parties 15,205,694 34,060,283
Accrued expenses 174,103,222 178,717,420
Nontrade payables 24,620,140 43,946,682
Others 12,673,120 25,000,123
20 P231,830,552 P497,109,515

Trade payables are non-interest bearing payable to suppliers with an average credit

period of 30 days.

Accrued expenses consist of:

Note 2016 2015
Contractors’ billings in progress P116,347,987 P81,517,105
Dealers’ support and incentives 28,479,832 63,027,929
Interest 12 11,764,377 15,656,271
Rent 17 9,068,717 8,935,411
Contracted services 3,994,175 4,117,094
Freight and handling 2,241,480 2,780,889
Advertising and promotions 378,915 630,388
Others 1,827,739 2,052,333

P174,103,222

P178,717,420

Nontrade payables are non-interest bearing payable to
telecommunications, maintenance and other services not in the ordinary course of

business with an average credit period of 30 days.

Others represents statutory liabilities and performance incentives.

suppliers of

11. Customers’ Deposits

This account consists of;

Note 2016 2015

Deposits for cylinders P155,343,101 P321,365,123
Less: amortization of cylinder deposits 43,230,865 91,941,089
Deposits for cylinders 112,112,236 229,424,034
Cash bond deposits 4 26,763,842 24,655,336
20 P138,876,078 P254,079,370

Customers’ cylinder deposits represent the net amounts received for LPG cylinders
loaned out to various dealers/customers. These deposits are non-interest bearing
and refunded to the dealers upon return of the cylinders. In 2016 and 2015, there

were no refunds made to the dealers.

In 2016, the Company derecognized customers deposits amounting to
P131.94 million which pertains to terminated dealers/customers (Note 8).
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Cash bond deposits account pertains to cash received from dealers/customers upon
entering into dealership agreement with the Company. This serves as a bond or
security in case of payment defaults and will be returned to the dealer/customer upon
termination of the agreement.

12. Loans Payable

This account consists of the following loans obtained from local banks:

Note 2016 2015
Unsecured short-term loans  12a, 12b, 12¢, 12d, 12e - P70,000,000 P780,000,000
Secured long-term loans 12f 302,500,000 412,500,000
Less noncurrent portion 192,500,000 302,500,000
Current portion of secured loans 110,000,000 110,000,000
Total current portion of loans payable P180,000,000 P890,000,000

Unsecured Loans

a. On September 27 2012, the Company obtained an unsecured short-term loan
amounting to P100 million. On September 17, 2014, the Company renewed the
loan with an interest rate of 2.50% per annum that matured on March 16, 2015,
On September 11, 2015, the loan was renewed again with an interest rate of
2.75% per annum and maturity date of on March 9, 2016.

On March 9, 2016 and May 31, 2016, the Company made partial payments
amounting to P30 million each date and fully paid the remaining balance of this
loan on June 9, 2016.

Outstanding balance of the loan amounted to nil and P100 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

b. On February 15 and February 26, 2013, the Company obtained unsecured short-
term loans amounting to P50 million and P150 million, respectively, for a term of
6 months. Both loans bear an interest rate of 3.50%.

On maturity date, the loans were renewed with 2.50% interest rates per annum
and maturity date of February 4 and February 10, 2015, respectively. Loans were
renewed again on maturity dates bearing 2.75% interest rates per annum and
maturity date of January 29, 2016 and February 3, 2016, respectively.

On January 29, 2016, the Company made a partial payment amounting to
P20 million and fully paid the remaining balance of P30 million on February 29,
2016 and P150 million on June 9, 2016.

Total outstanding balance of the loans amounted to nil and P200 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

c. On September 30, 2014, the Company obtained unsecured short term loan with
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company amounting to P100 million with interest rate
of 2.50% per annum for a term of 1 year. On maturity date, the loan was
renewed with 2.80% interest rate per annum for 3 months. It was renewed on
October 23, 2015 with interest rate of 2.70% per annum up to August 18, 2016.
On August 11, 2016, the loan was renewed with interest rate of 2.50% per
annum for 3 months and another 3 months with maturity date on February 7,
2017.
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On December 29, 2016, the Company made partial payment amounting to
P30 million. Outstanding balance of the loan as at December 31, 2016 and 2015
amounted to P70 million and P100 million, respectively.

On April 22, 2015 and May 6, 2015, the Company obtained unsecured short term
loans with Bank of Philippine Islands amounting to P150 million and P50 million,
respectively, for a term of 6 months. Both loans bear an interest rate of
2.55% per annum. On October 19, 2015 and November 2, 2015, loans were
renewed with an interest rate of 2.75% per annum which will mature on April 15,
2016 and April 29, 2016, respectively.

On April 29, 2016, the Company made a partial payment amounting to 30 million
and fully paid the remaining balance of P20 million on May 31, 2016 and
P150 million on June 9, 2016.

Total outstanding balance of the loans amounted to nil and P200 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

On May 11, 2015 and August 28, 2015, the Company obtained unsecured short
term loans with Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company amounting to P60 million
and P200 million, with interest rates of 2.75% and 2.90% per annum,
respectively. The P60 million was renewed for another 6 months which matured
on May 5, 2016 with an interest rate of 2.75% per annum. The
P200 million loan was paid monthly of P20 million starting September 2015 and
the remaining balance of P120 million was renewed with an interest rate of
2.75% per annum and matured on January 26, 2016.

The loan balance was renewed until fully paid with interest rate of 2.70% per
annum.

On June 27, 2016 and July 26, 2016, the Company made partial payments of
P40 million each date and fully paid the remaining balance of P40 million on
August 22, 2016 and P60 million on September 28, 2016.

Total outstanding balance of the loans amounted to nil and P180 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Secured Loans

f.

On July 23, 2012, the Company obtained a seven-year loan from a local bank
amounting to P550 million with principal repayment of 60 equal monthly
installments starting October 23, 2014. On April 1, 2015, PDST-F ceased to
exist. With the demise of PDST-F, the bank used the Substitute Interest Rate as
the Interest Rate pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07(b) of the Omnibus
Agreement. Substitute Interest Rate shall mean the BSP Overnight Reverse
Repurchase Agreement (RRP) Rate plus Gross Receipt Tax (GRT) which is
4.04% effective interest due on April 23, 2015.

On June 23, 2016, the BSP Monetary Board decided to maintain Overnight RRP

rate of 3.0%. Interest rate is computed based on the said BSP RRP plus 5%
GRT which is equivalent to 3.1579% effective October 23, 2016.
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This loan is used by the Company to finance the construction of a new refilling
plant. The assets of Duta Inc., an associate of PDB (Netherlands) B.V. (PDBN),
are used as collaterals for this loan. 100% capitalization rate was used to
determine the amount of borrowing cost to be capitalized. The loan balance with
interest rate of 3.1579% per annum amounted to P302.50 million and P412.50
million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

In 2014, the construction of the new refilling plant in Naga, Cebu has been
completed and the related interest expense related to this loan amounting to
P13.22 million and P17.37 million was recognized in profit or loss for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The debt agreements contain, among others, covenants relating to the usage of
proceeds, voluntarily suspend or discontinue its entire or a substantial portion of its
business operations, significant change in the nature of the business, restrictions on
loans and guarantees, disposal of a substantial portion of assets, merger and
consolidation, and declaration and payment of dividend. The debt agreements also
include maintenance of financial ratios in which the Company’s debt-to-equity ratio
and current ratio cannot exceed 3:1 and 1:1, respectively. The Company is in
compliance with the covenants of the loan as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Interest expense from these bank loans recognized in profit or loss amounted to
P24.35 million and P33.98 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

13. Capital Stock
The Company's capital stock, at P1 par value, consists of the following:

2016 2015

Common stock
Authorized - 1,100,000,000
Subscribed - 1,092,500,000 (net of
subscriptions receivable of P291,584,497 in
2016 and 2015) P800,915,503 P800,915,503

Preferred stock
Authorized - 2,000,000
Subscribed - 1,511,325 1,511,325 1,511,325

P802,426,828 P802,426,828

On May 3, 2010, the BOD of the Company approved the assumption by Petronas
International Corporation Limited (PICL) through Petronas Philippines, Inc. (PPI)
certain long-outstanding trade payables of the Company to Petronas Trading
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (PETCO) amounting to US$23.67 million or equivalent to
P1.10 billion (assumed liability). The assumed liability was converted into 1,099,800
preferred shares of the Company. The conversion resulted in an additional paid-in
capital amounting to P1,098,700,200.

In 2012, PPI transferred its ownership interest in the Company to PDBN, immediate
parent company, an entity incorporated under the Laws of the Netherlands.

-25-




On February 20, 2014, PDBN subscribed 411,525 shares of the Company’s
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stocks (RCPSs) with P1 par value. On April 7,
2014, PDBN made a capital infusion into the Company amounting to P411,525,000
representing the subscribed amount of 411,525 RCPS at P1 par value and the
excess of P999 over the par value per shares was recognized as additional paid-in
capital.

The preferred stock is non-voting and redeemable at the option of the Company. The
holder of the preferred stock is entitled to receive fixed dividend based on the
preferred stock’s par value and additional paid-in capital, payable semi-annually
every June and December of each year. The dividend on the preferred stock shall be
cumulative at 11% per annum, unless the BOD fixed a higher or lower yield, for any
given year. The holder of preferred stock in good standing may, at any time five
years after the issuance, convert such preferred stock into common stock. The
conversion shall be one share of preferred stock for one share of common stock.

The Company has unrecognized cumulative dividends on preferred stock amounting

P666.35 million and P500.11 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.
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Details are as follows:

a.

The Company purchased LPG products from PDBN amounting to nil in 2016 and
2015. Outstanding payable from purchases to PDBN amounted to nil and P52.36
million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is reported as part
of “Trade payables” under “Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account in
the statements of financial position. These payables have a 180-day credit terms
and are noninterest bearing.

The Company purchased LPG products from PETCO amounting to P1.68 billion
and P1.96 billion in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Outstanding payable to PETCO
from this purchase amounted to nil and P161.77 million as at December 31, 2016
and 2015, respectively, and is reported as part of “Trade payables” under
‘Accounts payable and accrued expenses” account in the statements of financial
position. These payables have a 30-day credit terms and are noninterest
bearing.

The Company purchased lubricant products from PLI, an entity under common
control, amounting to P11.12 million and P40.16 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Outstanding payables from this purchase to such related party
amounted to P5.23 million and P1.25 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, and are reported as part of “Trade payables” under “Accounts
payable and accrued expenses” account in the statements of financial position.

The Company sold lubricant products to PLMM, an entity under common control,
amounting to nil and P4.50 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Company has receivable from PCMSDN, an entity under common control,
for payment of office rental on its behalf which amounted to P182,832 and
P134,862 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The Company leases certain parcels of land from Duta Inc. and Kaparangan inc.
(Note 17).

In 2011, the Company made certain payments on behalf of Duta Inc. for the
purchase of land located in Cebu amounting to P138 million. Principal and
interest payments made by Duta Inc. amounted to P56.65 million, P1.35 million,
P0.3 million and P27.73 million in 2011, 2012, 2015 and 2016, respectively.
Various other advances amounted to P0.5 million and P2.1 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively. The outstanding balance amounted to P61.86 million and
P89.61 million, as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively. Interest income
earned for the advances amounted to P1.51 million and P7.87 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively.

In 2011, the Company made certain advances to Kaparangan, Inc. for the
purchase of three (3) parcels of land located in Cebu, Gensan and Negros
Occidental. The outstanding balance amounted to P14.74 million and
P14.54 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively.

The Company made certain payments on behalf of PPI for various expenses and
also owes PICL certain expenses.

Other related party transactions which are not included in the table are payments of
remuneration to key management personnel pertaining mainly to short-term benefits
amounting to P34.10 million and P31.20 milion for the vyears ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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15. Cost of Sales

This account consists of:

Nofte 2016 2015
Inventories P2,026,694,687 P2,717,365,864
Depreciation and amortization 8 80,253,552 71,497,966
Freight and handling 57,812,768 63,598,253

P2,164,761,007 P2,852,462,083

16. Retirement Benefits Plan

The Company has funded, noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan covering
substantially all of its regular employees. It provides a retirement benefit equal to one
hundred fifty percent (150%) of plan salary for every year of credited service.
Contributions and costs are determined in accordance with the actuarial studies
made for the plan. Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit method.
The latest actuarial valuation of the Company is dated October 14, 2016.

In accordance with the provisions of the Bureau of Internal Revenue Regulations
No. 1-68, it is required that a formal retirement plan be trusteed, that there must be
no discrimination in benefits; that forfeitures shall be retained in the retirement fund
and be used as soon as possible to reduce future contributions; and that no part of
the corpus or income of the retirement fund shall be used for, or diverted to, any
purpose other than for the exclusive benefit of the plan members.

The Retirement Plan Trustee (RPT), as appointed by the Company in the trust
agreement executed between the Company and the duly appointed RPT, is
responsible for the general administration of the retirement plan and the
management of the retirement fund. The RPT may seek the advice of counsel and
appoint an investment manager or managers to manage the retirement fund, an
independent accountant to audit the fund and an actuary to value the retirement
fund.

The RPT has no specific matching strategy between the plan assets and the plan
liabilities.
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The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing
balances for net defined benefit liability and its components.

Defined Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Plan Assets Net Defined Benefit Liability
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 20156

Balance at January 1 P70,711,048 P72,861,315 P54,905,617  P29,394,902 P16,806,431 P43,466,413

Included in profit or
loss

Current service cost 5,277,826 6,097,638 - - 5,277,826 6,097,638
Interest cost 3,768,899 3,402,623 2,689,908 1,937,352 1,078,991 1,465,271
9,046,725 9,500,261 2,689,908 1,937,352 6,356,817 7,562,909

Included in other
comprehensive
income

Remeasurements
losses - - (1,117,142) (606,938) 1,117,142 606,938
Actuarial losses (gains)
arising from:
Financial
assumptions 13,406,215 (4,884,057) - - 13,406,215 (4,884,057)
Experience
adjustment 189,417 (4,180,943) - - 189,417 (4,180,943)
13,595,632 (9,065,000) {1,117,142) (606,938) 14,712,774 (8,458,062)
Others
Contributions - - 15,805,431 25,000,000 (15,805,431)  (25,000,000)
Benefits pald (24,682,049) (819,699) (24,682,049) (819,699) - -
Benefits paid directly
from book reserve - (1,765,829) - - - (1,765,829)

(24,682,049)  (2,585,528)  (8,876,618) 24,180,301  (15,805,431) (26,765,829)

Balance at December 31 P68,671,356 P70,711,048 P47,601,765  P54,805,617 P21,069,591 P15,805,431

The remeasurements of defined benefit plan, before deferred income taxes, taken up
under “Other comprehensive income” in the statements of comprehensive income
and statements of changes in equity are as follows:

2016 2015

Cumulative actuarial gains at the beginning of

year (P16,075,229) (P7,617,167)
Recognized losses (gains) during the year:

Actuarial losses (gains) due to increase

(decrease) in defined benefit obligation 13,595,632 (9,065,000)
Remeasurements losses on plan assets 1,117,142 606,938
Cumulative actuarial gain at the end of year (P1,362,455) (P16,075,229)

The remeasurements of defined benefit plan, net of deferred tax liability, amounted
to P0.95 million and P11.25 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
as presented in the statements of changes in equity.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement in 2016 and 2015.

The Company’s plan assets are in the form of trust maintained in a local bank. The
carrying amount of the plan assets amounted to P47.60 million and P54.91 million,
which approximates its fair value, as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The plan assets expressed in percentages consist of the following:

2016 2015
Investments in government securities 57% 35%
Cash and cash equivalents 43% 65%
100% 100%
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The actual return on plan assets amounted to P1.57 million and P1.33 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively. The Company does not have any transaction or outstanding
receivables and payables with the plan assets and, the plan assets do not have any
investment in the Company.

The retirement benefits cost recognized as part of “Operating expenses” in the
statements of comprehensive income consists of:

2016 2015
Current service cost P5,277,826 P6,097,638
Interest cost 3,768,899 3,402,623
Interest income (2,689,908) (1,937,352)

P6,356,817 P7,562,909

The principal actuarial assumptions are as follows:

2016 2015
Discount rate 4.67% 5.33%
Future salary increase rate 6.00% 5.00%

The mortality rates used by the actuary were taken from “The 2001 CSO Table -
Generational (Scale AA, Society of Actuaries)”.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

2016 2015
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate

(1% movement) P10,655,394 P8,827,842 P7,650,664 P6,338,976
Future salary increase

rate (1% movement) 9,749,853 8,313,473 7,132,641 6,066,894

The changes are assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date and do
not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed
may be deemed to be more reasonable.

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risk, interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2016
5 Years but
Carrying Contractual Less than Less than More than
Amount Cash Flows 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years

Retirement
benefits liability P21,069,591 P21,965,980 P10,398,203 P1,320,980 P10,246,797
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2015

5 Years but
Carrying  Contractual Less than Less than More than
Amount  Cash Flows 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years

Retirement
benefits liability P16,805,431 P34,857,483 P25,633,5675 P1,526,477 P7,697,431

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the plan exposes the Company.
However, in the event a benefit claim arises under the retirement plan and the
retirement fund is not sufficient to pay the benefit, the unfunded portion of the claim
shall immediately be due and payable from the Company to the retirement fund.

The Company expects to contribute P21.07 million to the retirement plan in 2017.

17. Lease Agreements
The significant lease agreements entered into by the Company are as follows:

a. The Company has entered into operating lease agreements with related parties,
Duta Inc. and Kaparangan Inc., covering certain parcels of land for commercial
and industrial purposes. The lease is for a period of 25 years until May 31, 2021
for Duta Inc. and 10 years until July 31, 2015 for Kaparangan Inc., and can be
renewed upon the mutual agreement of both parties. The lease agreements are
subject to escalation annually.

On September 8, 2016, the lease agreement with Duta was amended to revise
the rental fees and the term of the lease to July 1, 2016 until termination or expiry
of the Contract of Lease 1996 or Contract of Lease 2011.

Rent expense pertaining to these long-term leases amounted to P12.17 million
and P25.94 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 14).

b. The Company has various operating lease agreements for parcels of land with
third parties for periods of 1 to 15 years starting February 2004. These leases
are subject to a 10% escalation rate every three (3) years. Rent expense
recognized in profit or loss pertaining to these lease agreements amounted to
P1.38 million and P1.51 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

c. The Company has operating lease agreement for an office space in Makati for a
period of one (1)year and is renewable at the option of both parties. Rent
expense ' recognized pertaining to this lease agreement amounted to
P0.74 million and P2.02 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments on the above lease agreements are as follows:

2016 2015
Within one year P16,219,292 P8,320,343
More than one year but not more than five years 58,101,026 39,873,481
More than five years 100,365,605 79,471,859

P174,685,923 P127,665,683

Total rental expense in 2016 and 2015 amounted to P14.57 million and
P29.91 million, respectively.
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Total security deposits paid related to these agreements are presented under
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” account in the statements of financial

position (Note 7).

18. Income Taxes

Income tax expense consists of;

2016 2015

Current P11,907,038 P5,779,623
Deferred 12,152,220 30,368,685
P24,059,258 P36,148,308

The current income tax expense represents MCIT for the years ended December 31,

2016 and 2015, respectively.

The reconciliation of income tax expense recognized in profit or loss is as follows:

2016 2015
Income before income tax P177,416,569 P16,131,299
Income tax expense computed at statutory
income tax rate at 30% 53,224,971 4,839,390
Nondeductible expenses and losses 47,849,310 2,768,886
Unrecognized deferred tax assets (44,893,813) 47,238,081
Net income under income tax holiday (31,958,696) (15,902,688)
Interest income subjected to final tax (162,514) (122,965)
Nontaxable income - (2,672,396)
P24,059,258 P36,148,308
Deferred tax assets consist of:
2016 2015
Items Recognized in Profit or Loss
Allowance for impairment losses on trade
receivables P39,047,583 P22,302,146
Allowance to reduce inventories to NRV 9,212,357 25,419,208
Unamortized past service cost 6,130,225 63,421
Retirement benefits liability 5,205,327 4,422 170
Accrued rent 1,700,641 1,797,521
Unrealized foreigh exchange loss 739,064 288,342
NOLCO - 16,581,338
62,035,197 70,874,146
Item Recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan 1,892,056 791,495
P63,927,253 P71,665,641
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The movements of deferred tax assets are accounted for as follows:

2016 2015

Amount charged to profit or loss (P8,838,949) (P30,368,684)
Amount charged to OCI relating to

remeasurement of defined benefit liability 1,100,561 (2,537,419)

Decrease in deferred tax assets (P7,738,388) (P32,906,103)

The details of the Company’s NOLCO, which are available for offsetting against
future taxable income and RCIT, respectively, are as follows:

Year Amount Remaining

Incurred Incurred Applied Expired Balance Year of Expiration

2016 P - P - P - P - 2019

2015 20,251,595 - - 20,251,595 2018

2014 283,122,815 86,561,146 - 196,561,669 2017

2013 144,155,776 144,155,776 - - 2016
P447 530,186 P230,716,922 P - P216,813,264

The details of the Company’s MCIT, which are available for offsetting against future
taxable income and RCIT, respectively, are as follows:

Year Amount Remaining

Incurred Incurred Applied Expired Balance Year of Expiration

2016 P11,907,038 P - P - P11,907,038 2019

2015 5,779,623 - - 5,779,623 2018

2014 3,725,698 - - 3,725,698 2017

2013 6,464,677 - 6,464,677 - 2016
P27,877,036 P - P6,464,677 P21,412,359

The Company did not recognize the deferred tax assets on MCIT amounting to
P21.41 million and P15.97 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
and on NOLCO amounting to P216.81 million and P392.26 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Management believes that it is not
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can
utilize the benefits therefrom.

On March 7, 2013, the Company has registered with the Board of Investment under
Registration No.2013-060 in accordance with the provisions of the Omnibus
Investments Code of 1987 as the Industry Participant with the new investment for the
construction of New LPG Import Terminal and Lubricant Storage Facilities in
Naga City, Cebu under the Oil Industry Deregulation Law (R.A. 8479). The
Company’s Naga Plant Site is entitled to avail the incentives which include, among
others, Income Tax Holiday for a period of five (5) years without extension from
March 2014 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in case earlier than the
date of registration.
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19. Significant Contracts and Agreements

The significant contracts and agreements entered into by the Company are as
follows:

a. Deferred Payment Agreements with its customers
The Company entered into a Deferred Payment Agreements (DPAs) with
customers who are unable to pay their due and outstanding payables (Note 5).

The parties have agreed to enter into the DPA for the full and final settlement of
the debt subject to the following terms and conditions:

iy Customer promises to pay the Company through monthly installment
payment and by way of post-dated checks;

ii) The Customer shall undertake to make full and final settlement of the
remaining outstanding amount of the Debt in the event that the customer
obtain any financial assistance from any banks and/or financial institutions to
finance its business operation. The entire remaining outstanding amount of
the Debt shall become immediately due without further demand, formal or
informal advice in the event any of the monthly installments are not received
by the Company on or before the due date;

iif) Should the Company be compelled to institute extra-judicial foreclosure of
the collateral and/or judicial actions to foreclose or collect unpaid amounts,
the customer shall be liable for the costs and fees incurred by the Company
in the preparation, monitoring and enforcement of the DPA, as well as costs
and fees incurred by the Company on account filing and prosecution and
enforcement of any judicial foreclosures, extra-judicial foreclosures, and
collection suits; and

iv) The Customer further agrees that in the event it fails to pay any of the
monthly installments, then the Company shall be at liberty to recover the
same through the process of court, in which event all costs and expenses
incurred by the Company including the legal costs on a solicitor and client
basis shall be solely borne by them.

QOutstanding balances from these DPAs are as follows:

Note 2016 2015
Receivables under DPA 20 P68,675,064 P127,954,380
Current portion 5 (63,357,310) (20,573,058)
Noncurrent portion P5,317,754 P107,381,322

b. MOAs with Taxi Operators

On July 16, 2006, the Company entered into MOAs with certain taxi operators
(“Operators”), whereby the latter agreed to establish refueling stations for LPG in
their respective locations and receive conversion kits, for the conversion of
vehicles from gasoline to LPG, provided by the Company payable over the
agreed term in the respective MOAs. Also, the Company provides equipment
and facilities needed for the LPG refueling station. The parties have agreed that
the Operators shall have at least 250 public utility vehicles each converted into
LPG-run units, and the Operators warrant that they will exert all efforts to ensure
the conversion of at least 250 public utility vehicles in their respective locations.
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The MOA is effective for a period of 10 years from commencement date agreed
by both parties and, thereafter, shall continue to be in force unless terminated by
either party by giving not less than two (2) months written notice to the other
party or until terminated in accordance with termination provisions provided in the
MOA.

As at December 31, 2016, the MOAs with taxi operators are in the process of
winding down.

20. Financial Risks and Capital Management

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s nonderivative financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, due from related parties, security deposits, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties, loans payable and customers’
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to provide financing for
the Company’s operations. The Company does not engage in the trading of financial
instruments or enter into speculative transactions. The main risks arising from the
use of these financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk -
interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of
credit verification and monitoring procedures. It is the Company’s policy to enter into
transactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant
concentration of credit risk. The Company ensures that sales of products are made
to customers with appropriate credit history and has internal mechanism to monitor
the granting of credit and management of credit exposures.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
these financial assets, without considering the value of collaterals, if any.

2016 2015
Cash in banks and cash equivalents P135,831,266 P147,141,310
Receivables - net* 368,274,739 929,177,763
Due from related parties 77,556,553 105,711,972
Security deposits 2,564,800 2,684,603

P584,227,358 P1,184,715,648

*Excluding advances to employees amounting to P74,589 and P626,523 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively

The top five (5) dealers in terms of trade receivables account for 24% and 51% of
total receivables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

To cover for its credit risks, the Company holds from its customers’ collaterals
composed primarily of bank guarantees, letters of credit, and real estate mortgages
amounting to P192.89 million and P341.56 million as at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. Post-dated checks are also issued by customers to facilitate
collection and appropriately cover outstanding trade receivable balances. Customers’
post-dated checks on hand amounted P203.2 million and 561.6 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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The following is the aging analysis per class of financial assets:

December 31, 2016

Neither Past Past Due but not Impaired
Due nor Less than 31 to 180 More than
Impaired 30 Days Days 180 Days Impalred Total
Loans and receivables
Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P135,831,266 P - P - P - P - P135,831,266
Receivables* 312,692,812 30,154,223 753,524 24,674,180 138,814,967 507,089,706
Due from reiated
parties 77,656,553 - 77,556,553
Security deposits 2,564,800 - - - - 2,564,800
P528,645,431 P30,154,223 P753,524 P24,674,180 138,814,967 P723,042,325

*Excluding advances to employees amounting to P74,589

December 31, 2015

Neither Past Past Due but not Impaired
Due nor Less than 31t0 180 More than
Impaired 30 Days Days 180 Days Impaired Total
Loans and Receivables
Cash in banks and
cash eguivalents P147,141,310 P - P - P - P - P147,141,310
Receivables* 456,370,179 41,053,412 28,511,956 403,242,216 74,737,590 1,003,915,353
Due from related
parties 105,711,972 - - 106,711,972
Security deposits 2,684,603 - - - - 2,684,603

P711,908,064 P41,053,412

P28,511,056 P403,242,216

P74,737,580 P1,259,453,238

*Excluding advances to employees amounting to P626,523

Below is the classification of the Company's financial assets that are neither past due

nor impaired:

December 31, 2016

Standard
High Grade Grade Total
Cash in banks and cash
equivalents P135,831,266 P - P135,831,266
Receivables - 312,692,812 312,692,812
Due from related parties - 77,556,653 77,656,553
Security deposits - 2,564,800 2,564,800
P135,831,266 P392,814,165 P528,645,431
December 31, 2015
Standard
High Grade Grade Total
Cash in banks and cash
equivalents P147,141,310 P - P147,141,310
Receivables - 456,370,179 456,370,179
Due from related parties - 105,711,972 105,711,972
Security deposits - 2,684,603 2,684,603
P147,141,310 P564,766,754 P711,908,064

The credit qualities of financial assets were determined as follow:

= Cash and cash equivalents are based on the Company's internal rating system.
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= Receivables, due from related parties and security deposits are based on a
combination of credit standing or rating of the customer or counterparty, historical
experience and specific and collective credit risk assessment. High grade
pertains to receivables that are secured or covered with collaterals; standard
grade represents receivables that are unsecured but with good payment history.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter difficulties
in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s objective is to maintain
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short-term
bank loans.

The following are the contractual maturities of nonderivative financial liabilities,
including estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting
agreements:

December 31, 2016

Carrying Contractual 1 Year More than
Amount Cash Flow or Less One Year
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses® P220,422,939 P220,422,939 P220,422,939 P -
Due to related parties 6,144,608 6,144,608 6,144,608 -
Customers’ deposits 138,876,078 138,876,078 - 138,876,078
Loans payable (current
and long-term) 372,500,000 386,411,993 188,785,888 197,626,105

P737,943,625 P751,855,618 P415353,435 P336,502,183

*Excludes nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P11,407,613.

December 31, 2015

Carrying Contractual 1 Year More than
Amount Cash Flow or Less One Year
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses® P486,019,692 P486,019,692 P486,019,692 P -
Due to related parties 16,437,125 16,437,125 16,437,125 -
Customers' deposits 254,079,370 254,079,370 - 254,079,370
Loans payable (current
and long-term) 1,192,500,000 1,257,422 917 909,094,167 348,328,750

P1,949,036,187 P2,013,959,104 P1,411,550,984 P602,408,120

*Excludes nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P11,089,823.

Financial assets, excluding noncurrent portion of receivables, amounting to
P578,909,604 and P1,077,334,326 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, are realizable within one year. Noncurrent portion of receivables are
realizable for more than one year.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency
exchange rates, interest rates and other market prices, will affect the Company's
financial performance or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters while optimizing returns.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash
flow interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s loans payable and cash and cash
equivalents, excluding cash on hand. Investments or borrowings with fixed rates
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. On the other hand, investment
or borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Company manages its interest cost by using an optimal combination of fixed and
variable rates loans. Management is responsible for monitoring the prevailing
market-based interest rates and ensures that the mark-up rates charged on its
borrowings are optimal and benchmarked against the rates charged by other creditor
banks. The Company’s investment policy is to maintain an adequate yield to match
or reduce the net interest cost from its borrowings pending the deployment of funds
to their intended use. In managing interest rate risk, the Company aims to reduce the
impact of short-term fluctuations on the Company’s earnings. Over the longer term,
however, permanent changes in interest rates would have an impact on profit or loss

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as
follows:

Note 2016 2015
Fixed Rate Instruments
Cash in banks and cash equivalents P135,831,266 P147,141,310
Unsecured short-term loans 12 70,000,000 780,000,000
Variable Rate Instruments
Secured long-term loans 12 302,500,000 412,500,000

Sensitivity Analysis for Variable Rate Financial Liabilities

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible 1% increase in the interest rate of the loan
with floating interest rate, with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased the Company’s income before income tax by P0.24 million in 2016 and
increased the Company’s loss before income tax by P4.67 million in 2015. A 1%
decrease in the interest rate would have had the equal but opposite effect.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. As a result, the Company is subject to transaction and
translation exposures resulting from currency exchange rate fluctuations. The
Company regularly monitors outstanding financial assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies and maintains them at a level responsive to the current exchange rates so
as to minimize risks related to these foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities.

The Company's significant exposure to foreign currency risk based on notional
amounts is as follows:

2016 2015
Trade payables in United States (U.S.) Dollar ($) $105,156 $4,586,222
Exchange rate 49.720 47.060

P5,228,356  P215,827,607
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The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

1 U.S. Dollar to Philippine Peso

Average Rate Spot Rate
December 31, 2016 49.816 49.720
December 31, 2015 47.118 47.060

Sensitivity Analysis

A 2% and 10% strengthening of the Philippine peso against U.S. dollar as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, would have increased net income and
equity by P0.07 million and P15.11 million, respectively.

A 2% and 10% weakening of the Philippine peso against U.S. dollar as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, would have had the equal but opposite
effect, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

This foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis is based on foreign exchange rate
variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the reporting
date.

Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain an optimal capital
structure in order to support its business and maximize shareholders’ value. As a
subsidiary of PETRONAS, the Company’s approach in managing capital is set out in
the PETRONAS Group Corporate Financial Policies. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new
shares, redeem or convert preference shares issued or adjust dividend payment to
shareholders.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio, which is
calculated as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt pertains to total current and
noncurrent liabilities shown in the statements of financial position. Total equity
comprises capital stock, additional paid-in capital, deposit for future stock
subscription and retained earnings.

The debt-to-equity ratio is as follows:

2016 2015
Total debt (a) P770,420,829 P1,975,931,441
Total equity (b) 2,632,239,365  2,389,180,996
Debt-to-equity ratio (a/b) 0.30:1 0.83:1

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during
the current year (Note 13).
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Fair Values and Classes of Financial Instruments
The fair values and classes of financial instruments, together with the carrying
amounts as shown in the statements of financial position, are as follows:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Financial Assets
L.oans and Receivables:
Cash in banks and cash
equivalents

P135,831,266

P135,831,266

P147,141,310

P147,141,310

Receivabies - net 368,274,739 368,274,739 929,177,763 929,177,763
Due from related parties 77,556,553 77,666,653 106,711,972 105,711,972
Security deposits 2,564,800 2,664,800 2,684,603 2,684,603

P584,227,358 P584,227,358 P1,184,715,648 P1,184,715,648
Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses* P220,422,939 P220,422,939 P486,019,692 P486,019,692

Due to related parties 6,144,608 6,144,608 16,437,125 16,437,125
Customers’ deposits 138,876,078 138,876,078 254,079,370 254,079,370
Loans payable (current and long-

term) 372,500,000 372,500,000 1,192,500,000 1,192,500,000

P737,943,625 P737,943,625 P1,949,036,187 P1,949,036,187

*Excludes nonfinancial liabilities amounting to P11,407,613 and P11,089,823 as at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in determining
the fair value of financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Security
Deposits, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (excluding Nonfinancial
Liabilities), Loans Payable and Due to Related Parties

Due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments, the carrying amounts
approximate their fair values at the reporting date. Long-term receivables are
reported at their net realizable values.

Customers’ Deposits
The carrying amount of customers’ deposits approximates fair value as the impact of
discounting is not material.

Long-term Loans Payable
Long-term loans payable approximates its fair value due to re-pricing of interest rate.

21. Contingencies

The Company is a party to various claims and litigation arising from the ordinary
course of business. The outcome of these claims and litigation cannot be presently
determined. The Company’s management and legal counsel believe that the
eventual liabilities under these claims and litigation, if any, will not materially affect
the Company'’s financial position.
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22. Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily
be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were
prepared in accordance with PFRSs. The following are the tax information required

under Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010 for the year ended December 31, 2016:

Based on RR No. 15-2010

A. Value Added Tax (VAT)

Amount

1. OQutput VAT

P331,002,555

Account title used:
Basis of the Qutput VAT:

Vatable sales P2,758,354,621
Exempt sales -
Zero rated sales 64,506,096

P2,822,860,717

2. Input VAT
Beginning of the year
Current year's purchases:

P153,572,067

a. Goods for resale or manufacture 209,305,925
b. Goods other than for resale or manufacture 21,846,135
c. Capital goods subject to amortization 7,610,843
d. Capital goods not subject to amortization 118,749
e. Services lodged under other accounts 27,404,217
Balance at the end of the year P419,857,936

3. Customs Duties and Tariff Fees:
Landed cost of imports
Customs duties paid or accrued
Tariff fees paid or accrued

P1,744,216,042
692,109

P1,744,908,151

B. Excise Taxes

Amount
Locally produced excisable items P -
Imported excisable items 318,198
P318,198
C. Documentary Stamp Tax
Amount
Loan instruments P1,897,034
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D. Withholding Taxes

Amount
Tax on compensation and benefits P16,643,203
Creditable withholding taxes 9,665,603
Final taxes (FBT) 456,941
Final taxes (interest income from banks) 78,069
P26,743,816
E. All Other Taxes (L.ocal and National)
Amount
Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses” account under Operating
Expenses
Real estate taxes P7,673,812
Licenses 3,271,543
P10,945,355

F. Deficiency Tax Assessments

The Company has no pending deficiency tax assessment as at December 31,
2016 (protested or otherwise).

G. Tax Cases

The Company has no tax cases as at December 31, 2016.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Duta, Inc. and a Subsidiary

15! Fioor Citibank Tower

Valero Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Duta, Inc. and a Subsidiary
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at

December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

PRC-BOA Accreditation No. 0003, wilh oxlended validity untii April 30, 2017
pursuant ia Board Resolulion No. 37 s, of 2017

SEC Accreditalion Ne. 0004-FR-4, Group A, valid untii November 10, 2617

IC Accreditalion No. F-2094/014-R, valid until August 28, 2017

BSP Accredited, Category A, valid unlil Decamber 17, 2017
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based con the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

BT SRVt

JOHN MOLINA
Partner
CPA License No. 0092632
SEC Accreditation No. 1101-AR-1, Group A, valid until April 30, 2017
Tax ldentification No. 109-916-107
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-23-2016
Issued October 18, 20186; valid until October 17, 2019
PTR No. 5804936MD
Issued January 3, 2017 at Makati City

March 10, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Beard of Directors and Stockholders
Duta, Inc. and a Subsidiary

15% Floor Citibank Tower

Valero Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Duta, Inc. and a Subsidiary
(“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at

December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or {o cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO ACCOMPANY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Duta, inc. and a Subsidiary

15® Floor Citibank Tower

Valero Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Duta, Inc. and
a Subsidiary as at and for the year ended December 31, 2016, on which we have
rendered our report thereon dated March 10, 2017.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended, we are stating

that the said company has a total number of five (5) stockholders owning 100 or more
shares each.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.
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DUTA, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4, 11 P27,555,886 P28,127,999
Instaliment contract receivables - current
portion 7, 11 3,289,546 4,496,251
Interest receivable 7, 11 326,219 594,693
Due from a related party 5 11 2,463,811 21,839,882
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9 10,324,082 9,596,709
Total Current Assets 43,959,544 64,655,534
Noncurrent Assets
Installment contract receivables - net of current
portion 7, 11 - 157,497
Investment properiies - net 6 339,053,659 355,141,344
Total Noncurrent Assets 339,053,659 355,298,841
P383,013,203 P419,954,375
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11 P558,931 P350,438
Due to related parties 5 11 343,946,747 368,893,155
Income tax payable 578,143 3,330,702
Deferred revenue 7 242 439 385,527
Total Current Liabilities 345,326,260 372,959,822
Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax liability 10 2,938,267 2,750,293
Total Liabilities 348,264,527 375,710,115
Equity
Capital stock 45,750,000 45,750,000
Deficit (11,001,324) (1,505,740}
Total Equity 34,748,676 44,244,260

P383,013,203

P419,954,375

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stafements.



DUTA, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Nofe 2016 2015
REVENUES
Rental 6,9 P13,912,772 P25,987,230
Interest 8 289.426 765,088
Realized gain on sale under instaliment
contract receivables 7 100,570 8,696
14,302,768 26,761,014
EXPENSES
Impairment losses on investment property - net
of reversal 6 15,387,608 -
Professional fees 5 1,397,066 506,988
Taxes and licenses 1,236,019 1,822,711
Outside services 790,322 831,647
Depreciation 6 700,077 534,997
Repairs and maintenance 98,000 -
Others 229,298 20,446
19,838,390 3,716,789
(5,535,622 23,044,225
INTEREST EXPENSE 5 1,508,577 7,872,667
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX (7,044,199) 15,171,558
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 2,451,385 4,509,837
NET INCOME (L.LOSS) AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L.LOSS) (P9,495,584) 10,661,721

See Nofes to the Consofidated Financial Statements.



DUTA, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

2016 2015
CAPITAL STOCK - P100 par value
Authorized - 510,000 shares
Subscribed and issued - 457,500 shares P45,750,000 P45,750,000
DEFICIT
Batance at beginning of year {1,505,740) (12,167,461)
Net income {loss) for the year {9,495,584) 10,661,721
Balance at end of year (11,001,324) (1,505,740)

P34,748,676 P44,244 260

See Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



DUTA, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax {P7,044,199) P15,171,558
Adjustments for:

Impairment losses on investment property 6 16,629,608 -

Interest expense 5 1,608,677 7,872,667

Reversal of impairment loss 6 (1,242,000) -

Depreciation 6 700,077 534,997

Interest income § (289,426) (765,088)

Realized gain on sale under installment

contract receivables 7 (100,570) (8,696)

Unrealized rent income (42,518) 42 518
Operating income before working capital

changes 10,119,549 22,847,956
Decrease (increase) in:

Due from a related party 5 19,376,070 {21,839,882)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (2,279,318) (2424,774)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 208,493 26,231

Due to related parties 5 {18,930,529) (108,927)
Cash generated from (used for) operations 8,494,265 (1,499,396)
Interest received 557,900 522,728
Interest expense paid {7.524,456) {906,934)
Income taxes paid {3,464,024) (867,046)
Net cash used in operating activities {1,936,315) (2,750,648)
CASH FLOWS FRONM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Collection of installment receivables 7 1,364,202 117,953
Additions to investment properties 6 - {1,754,948)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing

activities 1,364,202 {(1,636,995)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS {672,113) (4,387,643)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 28,127,999 32,515,642
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 4 P27,555,886 P28,127,999

See Notes o the Consolidated Financial Stafements.




DUTA, INC. AND A SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Reporting Entity

Duta, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated and registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 9, 1994. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary, Kaparangan,
Inc., (collectively referred to as the “Group”). The Group is primarily engaged in the
business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling securities of every kind and
description and leasing land.

The Company is 40%-owned by PDB (Netherlands) B.V. (PDBN) and 30%-owned
each by Masaligan, inc. and The Alsons Group.

The Company has 100% ownership interest in Kaparangan, inc. (*Kaparangan® or
the “Subsidiary"). The Subsidiary was incorporated and registered with the SEC on
January 21, 1994, primarily to engage in the business of buying, investing,
exchanging, selling securities of every kind and description and teasing land.

The address of the Group's registered office is at 15" Floor Citibank Tower, Valero
St., Salcedo Village, Makati City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board. PFRS consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
Philippine Interpretations issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized
for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 10, 2017.

Basis of Measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Fair Value Measurement
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the
measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market
observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy, described as follows.

s Level1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Foundation can access at reporting date;

= Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and



» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (uncbservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be
categorized in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Fair values of financial instruments are discussed in Note 11 fo the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiary.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group it is
exposed fo, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or convertible are taken
info account. The financial statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date when the Group obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using uniform accounting policies for like fransactions and other
events in similar circumstances. [nter-group balances and transactions, including
inter-group unrealized profits or losses, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

Noncontrolling interests, if any, represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets
not held by the Group and are presented in the consolidated financial statements
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related noncontrolling interest and other
components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is
lost.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is also
the Company and its Subsidiary’s functional currency. All financial information
presented has been rounded off to the nearest peso, unless otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRSs
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.




The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period when the estimates
are revised and if the revisions affect only that period or in the period of the revision
and future period when the revisions affect both current and future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Determining Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Company and its Subsidiary, the functional currency has been determined to be the
Philippine peso. It is the currency that mainly influences the normal operations of the
Company and its Subsidiary.

Classifying Financial instruments

The Group exercises judgments in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability, or an
equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement
and the definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance of a financial
instrument, rather than its legat form, governs its classification in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classified as
either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities. Classification of financial
instruments are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Determining the Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position cannot be derived from active markets,
they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
mathematical models. The Group uses judgments to select from a variety of
valuation models and make assumptions regarding considerations of liquidity and
model! inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated financial instruments.
The input to these models is taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value.
Fair values of financial instruments are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Evaluating Lease Agreements

The Group has entered into lease agreements as lessor. Management exercises
judgment in determining whether all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased property are transferred to the lessee. Lease wherein the Group retains all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the lease property is accounted for as
operating lease; otherwise it is accounted for as finance lease.

The Group has determined that all lease agreements qualify as operating leases,
since the Group retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased
property (Note 9).

Rental income amounted to P13,812,772 and P25,887,230 in 2016 and 2015,
respectively (Note 9).



Assessment of Impairment Indicators on Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses whether or not there are impairment indicators affecting its
investment property and other nonfinancial assets that the Group considers
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

= significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected
future operating results;

= significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy
for overall business; and

» significant negative industry or economic trends.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the balance of allowance for impairment losses
on investment property amounted to P45,418,877 and P30,031,269, respectively
(Note 6). Carrying values of investment properties are disclosed in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Estimates

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements
are based on the management'’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Actual resuits could differ
from such estimates.

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Group reviews the collectibility of its receivables and provides an allowance for
impairment losses on receivables, if necessary, at a level considered adequate for
potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.
These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group's relationship
with the customer, the customer’s payment behavior and known market factors. The
Group reviews the age and status of receivables and identifies accounts that are to
be provided with allowances on a continuous basis. The amount and timing of
recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments
of utilized methodologies. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would
increase the recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

The Group assessed that due from related parties and rent receivables (included in
‘prepaid expenses and other current assets”) are not impaired (Notes 5 and 9).
Carrying values of receivables are disclosed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value of investment Properties

The fair value of investment properties presented for disclosure purposes is based
on market value, being the estimated amount for which the property can be
exchanged between a willing buyer and seller in an arm’s length transaction, or
based on a most recent sale transaction of a similar property within the same vicinity
where the investment property is located.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations are prepared by
considering the aggregate estimated future cash flows expected to be received from
leasing out the property. A vield that reflects the specific risks inherent in the net
cash flows is then applied to the net annual cash flows to arrive at the property
valuation.




Estimated Useful Lives (EUL) of Investment Properties

The Group estimates the useful lives of investment properties based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The EUL are reviewed
periodically and are revised if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, and legal or other
limits on the use of the Group's assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and
circumstances. A reduction in the EUL of investment properties would increase
recorded expenses and decrease noncurrent assets. There are no changes in the
EUL of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of the Group's investment properties as at December 31, 2016
and 2015, amounted to P339,053,659 and P355,141,344, respectively (Note 6).

Estimating Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces the
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The Group also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of
temporary differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly. The
Group’'s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on the
forecasted taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods. This forecast is
based on the Group's past resuits and future expectations on revenues and
expenses. While the Group believes that its assumptions may materially affect the
assessment of the realizability of deferred tax assets and may lead to future addition
to deferred tax expense.

Deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are disclosed in Note 10 fo
the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriate provisions for its
present legal or constructive obligations, if any, in accordance with its policies on
provisions and contingencies. In recognizing and measuring provisions,
management takes risks and uncertainties into account.

Management assessed that no provision or disclosure of contingencies is necessary
as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.



3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consolidated financial statements, except for the changes in
accounting policies as explained below.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments fo Standards and
interpretations

The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards starting

January 1, 2016 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as

otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new amendments to standards did not

have any significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

* Disclosure Initiative (Amendments fo PAS 1). Addresses some concerns
expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to
ensure that entities are able to use judgment when applying PAS 1, Presentation
of Financial Statements. The amendments clarify that:

« Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing
immaterial information.

« Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

s The list of line items fo be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be
disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on
subtotals in these statements.

e An entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or
not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. Early adoption is permitted.

Standards |ssued but Not Yet Adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual

periods beginning after January 1, 2016. However, the Company has not applied the
following new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements. Unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2017

s Disclosure initiative (Amendments to PAS 7). The amendments address financial
statements users’ requests for improved disclosures about an entity’s net debt
relevant to understanding an entity's cash flows. The amendments require
entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes - e.g. by providing a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. When an entity first applies the
amendments, it is not required to provide comparative information for preceding
periods.

-6-



Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments to
PAS 12). The amendments clarify that:

s the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of
the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the
carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset;

o the calculation of future taxable profit in evaluating whether sufficient taxable
profit will be available in future periods excludes tax deductions resulting
from the reversal of the deductible temporary differences;

» the estimate of probable future taxable profit may inciude the recovery of
some of an entity's assets for more than their carrying amount if there is
sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this; and

¢ an entity assesses a deductible temporary difference related fo unrealized
losses in combination with all of its other deductible temporary differences,
unless a tax law restricts the utilization of losses to deduction against income
of a specific type.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning
oh or after January 1, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. On initial application, the
change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings
and other components of equity. If an entity applies the relief, it shall disclose
that fact. ‘

Effective on January 1, 2018

PFRS 9 (2014). PFRS 9 {(2014) replaces PAS 38 and supersedes the previously
published versions of PFRS ¢ that introduced new classification and
measurement requirements {in 2009 and 2010} and a new hedge accounting
model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities
measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge accounting
requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhautl of hedge accounting and introduce
significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk
management. The new standard is to be applied retrospectively with early
adoption permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on consolidated financial statements
resulting from the application of PFRS 9.



=  PFRS 15. PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Constrtiction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue,
IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31, Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue recognition model for
contracts with customers which specifies that revenue shouid be recognized
when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at
the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether
certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over fime, in a manner that best
reflects the company's performance, or at a point in time, when control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to
insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the
scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS,
then the guidance on separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS
takes precedence.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.

Effective on January 1, 2019

= PFRS 16, Leases, supersedes PAS 17, Leases, and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-feaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and
new disclosure requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were
introduced including an optional lessee exemption for short-term leases
(leases with a term of 12 months or less) and low-value items, as well as the
permission of portfolio-level accounting instead of applying the requirements fo
individual leases. New estimates and judgmental thresholds that affect the
identification, classification and measurement of lease transactions, as well as
reguirements to reassess certain key estimates and judgments at each reporting
date were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted PFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The Company is currently assessing
the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans to adopt this new standard on leases
on the required effective date once adopted locally.

Nonderivative Financial Instruments

Nonderivative financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, installment
receivables, interest receivable, due from a related party, accounts payable and
accrued expenses and due to related parties.

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in
the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recognition is done using settlement date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received
(in case of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for
those designated at FVPL, includes transaction cost.
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The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: HTM
investments, AFS financial assets, financial assets at FVPL, and loans and
receivables. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL or other
financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets are acquired and financial liabilities are incurred and whether they are
quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The Group has no HTM investments, AFS financial assets, and financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not
designated as AFS financial assets or financial assets at FVPL. Loans and
receivables are carried at cost or amortized cost, less any allowance for impairment
losses. Amortization is determined using the effective interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognized or impaired, as weill as through amortization process.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents, installment receivables, interest receivable,
and amounts due from a related party are inciuded in this category.

Cash in bank is stated at its face value. Cash equivalents are shori-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of three (3) months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value. :

Installment receivables represent selling price of investment property sold less
collections received for the period. Since the collection period for installment sales is
usually tong and may involve large amounts of receivable balances, interest is
charged to buyer to be paid concurrently with each installment payment. Each
collection consists of amounts applied to the payment of the outstanding balance of
the principal (instaliment receivable) and to the interest on installment receivables.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to nonderivative financial liabilities
that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL at the inception of the
liability. They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost, taking into account the impact
of applying the effective interest rate method of amortization (or accretion) for any
related premium, or discount and any directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's accounts payable and accrued expenses and amounts due fo related
parties are included in this category.

Determination of Fair Value

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability
or in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.



The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

‘Day 1’ Profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
from other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market,
the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair value
(a ‘Day 1 profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type
of asset. In cases where data used is not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs
become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction,
the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the 'Day 1’ profit
amount,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
This is not generally the case with master netting agreements. Thus, the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial
position.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a resuit of one or more events that
have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred loss event) and
that the loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset or that group of financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost such as loans
and receivables, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed accounts
whether significant or not, it includes the assets in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses this for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans and receivables are
grouped on the basis of such credit risk characteristics as type of borrower, credit
and payment status and term. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the excess of the loan's
carrying amount over its net realizable value, based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows from the asset. The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the loan’s original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. Any
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of an impaired loan is reduced to its net realizable value
through the use of an allowance account. If in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed to profit or loss, to the extent that the resulting carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its carrying amount had no impairment loss
been recognized.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,

* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in
the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

pay.

Financial Liabifities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of parcels of land held {o earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property, except for land, is measured at cost including transaction costs
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property
at the time the cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the
costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Land is stated at cost less
any impairment in value.

A subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefils associated with the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An external independent appraiser, having appropriate recognized professional
gualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued, values the Group's investment properties. The fair values are based on
market values, being the estimated amount for which properties could be exchanged
on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably and willingly.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations are prepared by
considering the aggregate of the estimated cash flows expected to be received from
renting out the properties. A yield reflects the specific risks inherent in the cash flows
that are applied to the net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation.

Vaiuation reflects, when appropriate, the type of tenants actually in occupation or
responsible for meeting lease commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting
vacant accommodation, the allocation of maintenance and insurance responsibilities
between the Group and the lessee and the remaining economic iife of the properties.
When rent reviews or lease renewals are pending with anticipated reversionary
increases, it is assumed that all notices, and when appropriate counter notices, have
been served validly and within the appropriate time.

The fair value of investment properties is determined for disclosure purposes.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets.

Depreciation which commences when the asset is available for its intended use, is
computed over five years which is the estimated useful life of the asset.

Investment properties are derecognized either when it has been disposed of or when
it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement and disposal of investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change
in use, evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating
lease to another party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and
only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of the owner-
occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assefs

The carrying amounts of the Group's nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU, while fair
value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or CGU in
an arm'’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of
disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets or CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount
of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss in which it arises.

Impairment losses recognized in prior petiods are assessed at each reporting date
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

Capital Stock

Capital stock is classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the
issuance of common shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any
tax effects.

Deficit

Deficit represents accumulated net income or loss net of any dividend distributions
and any capital adjustments. Dividends on capital stock are recognized as a liability
and deducted from equity when they are declared by the Group’s BOD. Dividends for
the year that are approved after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an
event after the financial reporting date.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured. No revenue
is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the
consideration due, or associated costs. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Rental Income. Payments received from rent under operating lease agreements are
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives granted, if any, are considered an integral part of the minimum lease
renial receivable over the term of the lease.

Instaliment Sales. The sales price of installment sales is the present value of the
consideration, determined by discounting the installment receivable at the imputed
rate of interest. The interest element is recognized as revenue, using the effective
interest method.
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Gain on Sale is recognized based on collection, regarded as partial recovery of cost
and realization of profit.

Interest Income. Interest income from bank deposits is recognized on a time
proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the asset.

Other Revenues. Revenue from other sources is recognized when earned during the
period.

Cost and Expenses Recoanition

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this basis, cost and expenses are recognized when they occur
and are reported in the consolidated financial statements in the periods to which they
relate.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfiiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets or the arrangement
conveys a right o use the asset. A reassessment is made after inception of the lease
only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

(b) a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilliment is dependent on
specified asset; or

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (b).

Leases, in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor, are classified by the Group as operating leases. Collections
received under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Taxes

Income tax in profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. income
tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which case it is
recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the current tax are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences atfributable to temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes and the carry forward
tax benefits of the net operating loss carryover (NOLCO} and the excess of minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT). Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is seitied, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset and they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward benefits of unused NOLCO and MCIT can be used.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Value-added Tax (VAT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:

» where the VAT incurred on the purchase of assets or services are not
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the VAT is recognized as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as
applicable; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of prepaid expenses and other current assets or accounts payable
and accrued expenses in the statements of financial position.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant infiluence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between related parties are on
an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to fransactions with non-related parties.

Provisions

Provisions are recoghized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e. more likely
than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to seftle the obligation; and (¢) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Where
the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements,
These are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events After the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's
consolidated financial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material,

4. Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Cash in banks P6,357,177 P7,176,305
Time deposits 21,198,709 20,951,694

11 P27,555,886  P28,127,999

Time deposit is a temporary deposit with maturity of three months or less and with
insignificant risk of change in value and earns annual interest ranging from 0.75% to
0.88% in 2016 and 2015. Total interest earned on cash in banks and time deposit
amounted to P187,291 and P153,496 in 2016 and 2015, respectively (Note 8).

5. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business, the Group has transactions with related parties as

follows:
Outstanding Balances
Amount Due from a Due to
Category/ of the Ralated Related
Transaction Year Note Transactlon Party Partles Terms Ceonditions
Other Related Parties
Petronas
Dagangan
Berhad (PDB}
Payables 2018 & P - P - P267,349,103 Due and demandable; Unsecured
2015 - - 267,349,103 noninterest-bearing
FEP]
L.ease of Land 2018 b 8,170,704 2,437,127 - Due and demandable; Unsecured;
2015 24,102,836 21,778,095 - noninterest-bearing Unimpaired
Securily Services 2018 [ 96,980 26,684 . Due and demandable; Unsecured;
2015 61,787 61,787 - noninterest-bearlng Urimpaired
Advances 2016 d 1,508,677 - 76,597,644 Due and demandable; Unsecured
2015 8,230,867 - 101,544,052 interest-bearing
2016 11 P2,463,811 P343,946,747
2018 11 P21,639,882 P368,893,155
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The Group does not provide allowance for impairment losses on related party
accounts as these are fully collectible.

a.

The obligation to PDB resulted from a share and purchase agreement between
PDB and Petronas Philipines, Inc. (PP!), where the Group’s obligation fo PPl was
transferred to PDBE.

ifand lease receivable from PEPI| amounted to P2,437,127 in 20168 and
P21,778,095 in 2015.

Security services paid by the Group on behalf of PEP! amounted to P28,684 in
2016 and P81,787 in 2015.

In 2011, the Group received interest-bearing advances at the rate of 90-day
T-Bill plus 1 percentage point per year on the amount with maturity date on
December 2020 amounting to P138,007 497 from PEP] for the purchase of land
located in Cebu. Subsequently, the Group paid PEPI the principal and its interest
of P19,600,000 and P8,131,123 in 2016, nil and P300,267 in 2015, P1,357,997
and nil in 2012 and P56,649,500 and nit in 2011, respectively. Moreover, PEPI
paid various operating expenses on behalf of the Group amounting to P568,372
in 2016 and P1,950,561 in 2015.

In 2013 and 2012, the Group made non-interest bearing advances from PEPI of
P11,442 348 and 2,981,202, respectively, for the purchase of three (3) parcels
of land located in General Santos, Negros Occidental and Cebu City (Notes 6).
As a result, the outstanding balance of the advances is P76,597,644 in 2016 and
P101,544,052 in 2015,

There is no payment for remuneration to key management personnel in 2016 and
2015 while administrative expenses charged by PEP| amounted to P240,000 for both
in 2016 and 2015 which are recognized as part of “Professional fees” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

6.

Investment Properties

The movements and balances of this account are as follows:

Lot Office

Land Improvements Equipment Total
Cost
January 1, 2015 P382,236,824 P2,747,492 P174,800 P385,159,116
Additions 21,607 1,733,341 - 1,754,948
Disposal - (264,742) (174,800} (439,542)
Becember 31, 2015 382,258,431 4,216,091 - 386,474,522
December 31, 2016 382,258,431 4,216,091 - 386,474,522
Accumulated Depreciation

and Impairment Losses

January 1, 2015 30,031,269 1,031,654 P174,800 31,237,723
Depreciation - 534,997 - 534,997
Disposal - (264,742) (174,800) (439,542)
December 31, 2015 30,031,269 1,301,909 - 31,333,178
Depreciation - 700,077 700,077
Impairment 15,387,608 - 15,387,608
December 31, 2016 45,418,877 2,601,986 - 47,420,863
Carrying Amount
December 31, 2015 P352,227 162 P2,914,182 P - 355,141,344
December 31, 2016 P336,839,654 P2,214,105 P - P339,053,659
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This account consists of several parcels of land which are held by the Group for
capital appreciation and to earn rental income {Note 9). One of these parcels of land
particularly located in Naga, Cebu is lent by the Group to PEPI to be used as
collateral in securing the latter's loan to finance construction of its new refilling plant
in the said location. The Group in return was able to generate rental income from
PEPI for the said iand in addition to existing lands leased by PEPI. The total rental
income generated in 2016 is P13,912,772 and P10,258,310 in 2015. In addition, in
2015, the Group made additicnal billings relating to 2011 to 2014 for total amount of
P18,728,920 and were recognized under "Rental income",

The above parcels of land have been appraised by an independent appraiser having
appropriate recognized professional gualifications and recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The parcels of land are valued based
on market value, which is the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

Based on their issued valuation reports dated June and July 2016, the fair value of
all parcels of land of P724,805,000 are higher than cost by 90% except for the
parcels of land located in Cebu and Negros Occidental which are impaired by about
30% lower of its cost. This resulted in a recognition of additional impairment loss of
P16,629,608 in 2016. Moreover, another one property located in Labangal, General
Santos City which was impaired in 2014 amounting to P1,242,000 was appraised
with value of about 204% of its cost. As such, the related impairment is reversed in
2016.

Lot improvements mainly include fences of some investment properties which are
depreciated and recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in 2016 and 2015. Depreciation amounted to P700,077 in
2016 and P534,997 in 2015.

Related real property taxes amounted to P500,754 and P689,955 for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

7. Installment Confract Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2016 2015
Current portion P3,289,546 P4,496,251
Noncurrent portion - 157,497

11 P3,289,546 P4,653,748

In 2010, the Group entered into a contract to sell a certain parcel of land with
carrying amount of P11,115,349 for P12,000,000 to a local business establishment,
collectible on installment over seven (7) years. The 7-year instaliment plan is
computed based on 10% interest rate per annum and with equal monthly
amortization of P157,710 from February 2010. The title of the land will only be
transferred upon full payment.
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Deferred gain on sale is recognized as follows:

2016 2015

Deferred gain on sale P884,651 P884,651
Less realized gain on sale:

Balance at beginning of the year 541,642 532,946

Realized during the year 100,570 3,696

Balance at the end of year 642,212 541,642

Balance of deferred gain on sale P242,439 P343,009

The balance of deferred gain on sale is included as part of “Deferred revenue”
account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Total interest receivable relative to the installment contract amounted to P326,219
and P594,693 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

8. Interest Income

This account consists of:

Note 2016 20156

Interest income on;
Cash and cash equivalents 4 P187,291 P153,496
installment sales 7 102,135 611,592
P289,426 P765,088

9. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group has entered the following lease agreements:

a. Leases of certain parcels of land to PEPI for periods of ten (10) years up to
July 31, 2015 and twenty-five (25) years up to May 31, 2021, renewable upon
mutual agreement of the parties. Starting April 1, 2011, the lease is subject to
escalation annually. Starting August 1, 2015, the Subsidiary has granted PEPI
extension of lease from until revoked in writing by either party.

On September 8, 2016, some of the lease contracts were amended to revise the
rental fees and the term of the lease to July 1, 2016 until termination or expiry of
the Contract of Lease 1996 or Contract of Lease 2011,

b. Leases of certain parcels of land to third parties for a period of up to five (5) and
ten (10) years, renewable upon mutual agreement of both parties concerned.
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¢. The Subsidiary entered into an operating lease agreement with First Auto-LPG
Gas Holdings Corporation (FAGHC) for the Subsidiary’s land occupied by
FAGHC gas stations. The lease shall be for be a period of ten (10) years up to
May and September 2022 and may be extended under such terms and
conditions that may be agreed upon by the parties. The lease is subject to 12%
escalation starting on the third year from the date of the effectivity of the lease
period, another 12% escalation on the sixth year, and another 12% on the ninth
year until the expiration of the lease period. Rental receivable related from this
escalation clause amounted to P1,296,260 and P1,444,521 as at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

In June 2015, FAGHC assigned the contract of lease to a third party until the
remaining period of the original lease term for areas located in Davao.

Rental income pertaining to the above lease agreements amounted to P12,032,104
and P24,121,495 in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Future minimum lease receivables
(excluding taxes) are collectible as follows:

2016 2015
Within one year P18,353,220 P10,244,200
More than one year but not more than five years 76,795,813 47,550,178
More than five years 106,657,167 92,765,963

P201,806,200 P150,560,341

10. Income Taxes

Income tax expense consists of:

2016 2015
Current P2,263,410 P3,840,008
Deferred 187,975 669,829

P2,451,385 P4,509,837

The current income tax expense in 2016 and 2015 represents RCIT.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group recognized deferred tax liability on
the escalation of rent income based on lease agreement which is spread over the
total lease term following PAS 19 amounting to P2,938,267 and P2,750,293,
respectively.

Deferred tax assets amounting to P13,625,663 and P9,009,380 for impairment
losses of P45,418,876 in 2016 and P30,031,270 in 2015 have not been recognized
as it is unlikely that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can
utilize the benefits therefrom.
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The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at RCIT rate of 30% to the actual
income fax recognized in profit or loss is as follows:

2016 2015
Income (loss) before income tax (P7,044,199) P15,171,558

Income tax expense (benefit) using the RCIT rate  (P2,113,259) P4,551,467
Add (deduct) income tax effect of the foliowing:

Nondeductible interest expense 4,550 4,418
Interest income subjected to final tax (56,188) (46,049)
Changes in unrecognized deferred taxes
affecting current year 4,616,282 -
P2,451,385 4,509,836

11. Financial Risks and Capital Management

Financial Risk Management Objeclives and Policies ,

The Group’s nonderivative financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents,
due from related parties, installment contract receivables, accounts payable and
accrued expenses and due to related parties. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is o provide financing for the Group’s operations. The Group does not
engage in the trading of financial instruments or enter into speculative fransactions.
The main risks arising from the use of these financial instruments are credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Credit Risk '

Credit risk represents the loss that the Group would incur if a counterparty failed to
perform under its contractual obligations. The Group manages credit risk by
transacting only with credit worthy counterparties.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments, without
considering the value of collaterals, if any:

Note 2016 2015
Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 4 P27,5655,886 P28,127,999
Interest receivable 326,219 594,693
Due from a related party 5 2,463,811 21,839,882
Installment contract receivables 7 3,289,546 4.653,748

P33,635,462 P55,216,322

Loan and receivables composed of cash and cash equivalents, interest receivable,
due from a related party and instaliment contract receivables, with total amount of
33,635,462 and P55,216,322 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are
neither past due nor impaired.
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The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s loans and receivables as at
December 31 based on their historicat experience with the corresponding debtors:

2016
Standard
High Grade Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents P27,555,886 P - P27,555,886
installment receivables - 3,289,546 3,289,546
Interest receivable - 326,219 326,219
Due from a related party - 2,463,811 2,463,811
P27,555,886 P6,079,576 P33,635,462
2015
Standard
High Grade Grade Total
Cash and cash equivalents P28,127,999 P - P28,127,999
Installment receivables - 4,653,748 4,653,748
interest receivable - 594,693 594,693
Due from a related party - 21,839,882 21,839,882

P28,127,999 P27,088,323 P55,216,322

The Group’s financial assets are categorized based on the Group's collection
experience.

High Grade
Settlements are made by the counterparty following the terms of the contracts
without much collection effort.

The credit risk for these financial assets is considered negligible since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Standard Grade
Some follow-up reminder is performed to obtain setilement from the counter party.

The credit risk for these financial assets is considered to be standard grade with
satisfactory financial capability and credit standing but with some elements of risk
where a certain measure of control is necessary in order to mitigate the risk of
default.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. To ensure liquidity, the Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and obtain financial support from its related parties, if necessary.
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The table below summarizes the contractual maturity of the Group’s financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2016
Carrying Confractual Within
Amount Cash Flow One Year
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses”® P528,894 P528,394 P528,894
Due to related parties 343,946,747 343,948,747 343,946,747

P344,475,641 P344,475,641 P344,475,641

* Excludes nonfinancial liabilitles amounting to P30,037.

2015
Carrying Contractual Within
Amount Cash Flow One Year
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses® P348,448 P348,448 P348,448
Due to related parties 368,803,155 368,893,155 368,893,155

P369,241,603 P369,241603 P369,241,603

* Excludes nonfinancial liabifities amounting to P1,990.

The Group manages its liquidity needs mainly by forecasting cash inflows and
outflows due in its day-to-day operations. The data used for analyzing these cash
flows is consistent with that used in the contractual maturity analysis above. The
Group considers expected cash flows from financial assets in assessing and
managing liquidity risk, particularly its cash and cash equivalents, receivables, due
from a related party and installment contract receivables. Financial assets amounting
to P33,635,462 and P55,216,322 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
are realizabie within one year.

Capital Management

. The BOD’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
The Board sets strategies for the Group with the objective of establishing a versatile
and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The Group defines capital as capital stock and deficit. There were no changes in the
Group’s approach to capital management during the current year.

The Group is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

Fair Values

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amounts of the financial assets and
liabilities, which include cash and cash equivalents, interest receivable, rental
receivable, due from a related party, accounts payable and accrued expenses and
due to related parties reasonably approximate fair values due to the short-term
nature of these financial instruments.

Instaliments receivables which are interest-bearing and reported at present values
also approximate the cash amount that would be fully settled as at reporting date.
They are classified as current assets when they become coliectible within twelve (12)
months from the reporting date.
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